
Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Posted Per Government Code Section §54954.2 

 

SCOTTS VALLEY 

FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
 

7 Erba Lane, Scotts Valley, California 95066 (831) 438-0211 Fax (831) 438-0383 
 
 

Board of Directors 

Agenda 

Wednesday, June 14, 2023, 6:00 P.M.  

Scotts Valley City Hall 

One Civic Center Drive, Scotts Valley CA 95066 
 

Agendas and Board Packets are available on the Scotts Valley Fire Protection District (SVFPD) 

website at www.scottsvalleyfire.com. 
 

Any person who requires a disability related modification or accommodation in order to participate 

in a public meeting should make such a request to Ron Whittle, Board Secretary, for immediate 

consideration.  

 

1.   Call to Order  

1.1  Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silence 
 

1.2 Roll Call 

 

2. Public Comment (GC §54954.3) 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons wishing to address the Board on any matter not 

on the agenda. Any matter that requires Board action will be referred to staff for a report and action 

at a subsequent Board meeting. 

 

3. Agenda Amendments (GC §54954.2) – Discussion/Action 

 

4.  Consent Calendar 

(Consent calendar items will be enacted upon by one motion. There will be no separate discussion on 

items unless a Board Member, Staff, or member of the public requests removal of the item for separate 

action.) 
 

4.1 Minutes: Approve Regular Board Meeting Minutes of May 10, 2023 
 

4.2 Approve SVFPD Claims Disbursements for the Month of May 1, 2023 through May 31, 

2023 in the Amount of: 
 

Payroll and Benefits: $678,598.88 

General Fund:  $  54,273.28  

Capital Outlay: $    1,120.69 

SCHMIT:  $126,302.22        

TOTAL:  $860,295.07 
 

4.3 Authorize Payment to CalPERS in the amount of $988,365 for the Safety Plan’s Unfunded 

Liability Annual Lump Sum Prepayment Option to be Paid After July 1, 2023, for the 

2023/2024 Fiscal Year 

4.4 Approve Surplus Equipment List 

 

file://///svfd2/admin/data/AGENDAS/2013/2012/www.scottsvalleyfire.com


 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District 

Board of Directors Meeting for June 14, 2023 

Agenda 
 

Page 2 of 2 

Agenda Posted Per Government Code Section §54954.2 

 

5. Discussion Items  

5.1 Branciforte Annexation Update - Ad-Hoc Committee 

5.2 Fire Station Bond Measure Update 

 

6. Action Items – Discussion/Action  

6.1 Appoint Fire Chief Mark Correira as the District’s Designated Representative for the Santa 

Cruz County Fire Agencies Insurance Group and the Emergency Medical Services 

Integration Authority – Effective 6/24/2023 

6.2  Approve New Policy 808 Outside Employment 

6.3 Accept and File District Plan for Services for Branciforte Fire Reorganization 

6.4  Accept and File SVFPD ISO Public Protection Classification Effective 9/2023 

 

7. Board of Directors and Administrative Reports – Information/Discussion 

(No action will be taken on any questions raised by the Board at this time.) 
 

7.1 Board of Directors Report – Directors 
 

7.2 Administrative Report – Chief Officers 

8.  Correspondence  

 8.1 Thank You Note  

9. Closed Session: Government Code §54957.7 

9.1 Public Employee Appointment/Public Employment (Government Code § 54957) 

Title: Fire Chief 

10. Open Session – Discussion/Action  

10.1 Report on Closed Session: Government Code §54957.1 

10.2 Approve Fire Chief Employment Agreement 

 

11. Request for Future Agenda Items  

 

12.  Adjournment 
 
 

Next Regularly Scheduled Board Meeting:    

Wednesday, July 12, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 













Actual  Transactions

Run: 2023-06-01 10:52 AM

Transaction Type = Actual; Revenues/Expenditures = R,(E; Chart Fields = GLKey,Character,Object
Post On [@prior-month] and Revenues/Expenditures [XP] and GL Key [685010, 685030, 685040]

Year
Fiscal

Month
Fiscal

On
Post

Document No Doc Ref Revenues/Expenditures GL Key Character Object Amount Description Vendor No Warrant No

GL Key: 685010 – SCOTTS VALLEY FIRE PROT SVC
Character: 50 – SALARIES AND EMPLOYEE BENEF

Object: 51000 – REGULAR PAY-PERMANENT
2023 11 5/03/2023 PAYPERIOD 09 Expenditures 685010 50 51000 -134,836.35 PAYPERIOD 09PAYDATE 05052023
2023 11 5/17/2023 PAYPERIOD 10 Expenditures 685010 50 51000 -135,229.88 PAYPERIOD 10PAYDATE 05192023
2023 11 5/31/2023 PAYPERIOD 11 Expenditures 685010 50 51000 -135,447.46 PAYPERIOD 11PAYDATE 06022023

Total 51000 – REGULAR PAY-PERMANENT -405,513.69

Object: 51005 – OVERTIME PAY-PERMANENT
2023 11 5/03/2023 PAYPERIOD 09 Expenditures 685010 50 51005 -15,850.60 PAYPERIOD 09PAYDATE 05052023
2023 11 5/11/2023 DU96425 DU96425 Expenditures 685010 50 51005 1,200.00 FC3 Instructor-Green CK#51586 C99999
2023 11 5/17/2023 PAYPERIOD 10 Expenditures 685010 50 51005 -17,080.37 PAYPERIOD 10PAYDATE 05192023
2023 11 5/31/2023 PAYPERIOD 11 Expenditures 685010 50 51005 -16,246.60 PAYPERIOD 11PAYDATE 06022023

Total 51005 – OVERTIME PAY-PERMANENT -47,977.57

Object: 51010 – REGULAR PAY-EXTRA HELP
2023 11 5/17/2023 PAYPERIOD 10 Expenditures 685010 50 51010 -1,313.65 PAYPERIOD 10PAYDATE 05192023

Total 51010 – REGULAR PAY-EXTRA HELP -1,313.65

Object: 51035 – HOLIDAY PAY
2023 11 5/03/2023 PAYPERIOD 09 Expenditures 685010 50 51035 -11,296.13 PAYPERIOD 09PAYDATE 05052023
2023 11 5/17/2023 PAYPERIOD 10 Expenditures 685010 50 51035 -11,296.13 PAYPERIOD 10PAYDATE 05192023
2023 11 5/31/2023 PAYPERIOD 11 Expenditures 685010 50 51035 -11,296.13 PAYPERIOD 11PAYDATE 06022023

Total 51035 – HOLIDAY PAY -33,888.39

Object: 51040 – DIFFERENTIAL PAY
2023 11 5/03/2023 PAYPERIOD 09 Expenditures 685010 50 51040 -7,710.71 PAYPERIOD 09PAYDATE 05052023
2023 11 5/17/2023 PAYPERIOD 10 Expenditures 685010 50 51040 -7,710.71 PAYPERIOD 10PAYDATE 05192023
2023 11 5/31/2023 PAYPERIOD 11 Expenditures 685010 50 51040 -7,710.71 PAYPERIOD 11PAYDATE 06022023

Total 51040 – DIFFERENTIAL PAY -23,132.13

Object: 52010 – OASDI-SOCIAL SECURITY
2023 11 5/03/2023 PAYPERIOD 09 Expenditures 685010 50 52010 -2,932.64 PAYPERIOD 09PAYDATE 05052023
2023 11 5/17/2023 PAYPERIOD 10 Expenditures 685010 50 52010 -3,032.06 PAYPERIOD 10PAYDATE 05192023
2023 11 5/31/2023 PAYPERIOD 11 Expenditures 685010 50 52010 -2,961.50 PAYPERIOD 11PAYDATE 06022023

Total 52010 – OASDI-SOCIAL SECURITY -8,926.20

Object: 52015 – PERS
2023 11 5/03/2023 PAYPERIOD 09 Expenditures 685010 50 52015 -26,040.99 PAYPERIOD 09PAYDATE 05052023
2023 11 5/17/2023 PAYPERIOD 10 Expenditures 685010 50 52015 -25,138.01 PAYPERIOD 10PAYDATE 05192023
2023 11 5/31/2023 PAYPERIOD 11 Expenditures 685010 50 52015 -25,384.69 PAYPERIOD 11PAYDATE 06022023

Total 52015 – PERS -76,563.69

Object: 53010 – EMPLOYEE INSURANCE & BENEFITS
2023 11 5/03/2023 PAYPERIOD 09 Expenditures 685010 50 53010 -1,000.00 PAYPERIOD 09PAYDATE 05052023
2023 11 5/03/2023 PAYPERIOD 09 Expenditures 685010 50 53010 986.78 PAYPERIOD 09PAYDATE 05052023
2023 11 5/05/2023 0523SVFD Expenditures 685010 50 53010 -655.44 LOFRANCO, SAL SVFD Health Ins. V105221 80055009
2023 11 5/05/2023 0523SVFD Expenditures 685010 50 53010 -1,358.24 BIDDLE, MIKE SVFD Health Ins. V105980 80055008
2023 11 5/05/2023 0523SVFD Expenditures 685010 50 53010 -1,469.14 MCMURRY, MICHAE SVFD Health In V105430 80055010
2023 11 5/05/2023 0523SVFD Expenditures 685010 50 53010 -711.06 WHITTLE, RON SVFD Health Ins. V102822 80055015
2023 11 5/05/2023 0523SVFD Expenditures 685010 50 53010 -849.00 THEILEN, LOTHAR SVFD Health In V117701 80055013
2023 11 5/05/2023 0523SVFD Expenditures 685010 50 53010 -348.27 RONZANO, CHRIST SVFD Health In V111324 80055012
2023 11 5/05/2023 0523SVFD Expenditures 685010 50 53010 -364.73 PHINN, MIKE SVFD Health Ins. 5 V103782 80055011
2023 11 5/10/2023 MAY23HLTH Expenditures 685010 50 53010 -59,327.35 SV FIRE MAY 2023 V116512 15182
2023 11 5/11/2023 DU96425 DU96425 Expenditures 685010 50 53010 48.56 M.Pasquini May23 DentalCK#1013 C99999
2023 11 5/11/2023 DU96425 DU96425 Expenditures 685010 50 53010 48.56 M.Marsano May23 Dental CK#195 C99999
2023 11 5/15/2023 0623SVFD Expenditures 685010 50 53010 -1,261.57 FDAC EBA SVFD 6/2023 V33857 00431425
2023 11 5/15/2023 0623SVFD Expenditures 685010 50 53010 -4,654.90 HEALTH CARE EMP SVFD Group 367 V108670 00431426
2023 11 5/17/2023 PAYPERIOD 10 Expenditures 685010 50 53010 986.78 PAYPERIOD 10PAYDATE 05192023
2023 11 5/17/2023 PAYPERIOD 10 Expenditures 685010 50 53010 -1,000.00 PAYPERIOD 10PAYDATE 05192023
2023 11 5/18/2023 DU96611 DU96611 Expenditures 685010 50 53010 137.94 S.Kovacs May23 Dental C99999
2023 11 5/24/2023 DU96760 DU96760 Expenditures 685010 50 53010 91.85 H.Bustichi May23 DentalCK#4103 C99999
2023 11 5/30/2023 0623SVFD Expenditures 685010 50 53010 -849.00 THEILEN, LOTHAR SVFD Health In V117701 80055983
2023 11 5/30/2023 0623SVFD Expenditures 685010 50 53010 -348.27 RONZANO, CHRIST SVFD Health In V111324 80055982

Page 1 of 4



Actual  Transactions

Run: 2023-06-01 10:52 AM

Transaction Type = Actual; Revenues/Expenditures = R,(E; Chart Fields = GLKey,Character,Object
Post On [@prior-month] and Revenues/Expenditures [XP] and GL Key [685010, 685030, 685040]

Year
Fiscal

Month
Fiscal

On
Post

Document No Doc Ref Revenues/Expenditures GL Key Character Object Amount Description Vendor No Warrant No

GL Key: 685010 – SCOTTS VALLEY FIRE PROT SVC
Character: 50 – SALARIES AND EMPLOYEE BENEF

Object: 53010 – EMPLOYEE INSURANCE & BENEFITS
2023 11 5/30/2023 0623SVFD Expenditures 685010 50 53010 -1,358.24 BIDDLE, MIKE SVFD Health Ins. V105980 80055978
2023 11 5/30/2023 0623SVFD Expenditures 685010 50 53010 -711.06 WHITTLE, RON SVFD V102822 80055984
2023 11 5/30/2023 0623SVFD Expenditures 685010 50 53010 -1,469.14 MCMURRY, MICHAE SVFD Health In V105430 80055980
2023 11 5/30/2023 0623SVFD Expenditures 685010 50 53010 -364.73 PHINN, MIKE SVFD Health Ins. 6 V103782 80055981
2023 11 5/30/2023 0623SVFD Expenditures 685010 50 53010 -655.44 LOFRANCO, SAL SVFD Health Ins. V105221 80055979
2023 11 5/31/2023 PAYPERIOD 11 Expenditures 685010 50 53010 -1,000.00 PAYPERIOD 11PAYDATE 06022023
2023 11 5/31/2023 PAYPERIOD 11 Expenditures 685010 50 53010 986.78 PAYPERIOD 11PAYDATE 06022023

Total 53010 – EMPLOYEE INSURANCE & BENEFITS -76,468.33

Object: 53015 – UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE
2023 11 5/17/2023 PAYPERIOD 10 Expenditures 685010 50 53015 -21.02 PAYPERIOD 10PAYDATE 05192023

Total 53015 – UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE -21.02

Object: 55021 – OTHER BENEFITS MISC
2023 11 5/03/2023 PAYPERIOD 09 Expenditures 685010 50 55021 -1,598.07 PAYPERIOD 09PAYDATE 05052023
2023 11 5/17/2023 PAYPERIOD 10 Expenditures 685010 50 55021 -1,598.07 PAYPERIOD 10PAYDATE 05192023
2023 11 5/31/2023 PAYPERIOD 11 Expenditures 685010 50 55021 -1,598.07 PAYPERIOD 11PAYDATE 06022023

Total 55021 – OTHER BENEFITS MISC -4,794.21
Total 50 – SALARIES AND EMPLOYEE BENEF -678,598.88

Character: 60 – SERVICES AND SUPPLIES
Object: 61110 – CLOTHING & PERSONAL SUPPLIES

2023 11 5/05/2023 0423SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 61110 -844.96 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055014
2023 11 5/15/2023 38709 Expenditures 685010 60 61110 -130.00 SCOTTS PPE RECO SVFD V118889 00431428
2023 11 5/26/2023 0523SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 61110 -319.71 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055920

Total 61110 – CLOTHING & PERSONAL SUPPLIES -1,294.67

Object: 61125 – UNIFORM REPLACEMENT
2023 11 5/05/2023 0423SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 61125 -393.30 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055014
2023 11 5/12/2023 86292 Expenditures 685010 60 61125 -899.06 SUMMIT UNIFORMS SVFD V107901 00431291
2023 11 5/12/2023 86293 Expenditures 685010 60 61125 -899.06 SUMMIT UNIFORMS SVFD V107901 00431291

Total 61125 – UNIFORM REPLACEMENT -2,191.42

Object: 61221 – TELEPHONE-NON TELECOM 1099
2023 11 5/05/2023 0423SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 61221 -1,624.25 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055014
2023 11 5/26/2023 0523SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 61221 -1,073.74 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055920

Total 61221 – TELEPHONE-NON TELECOM 1099 -2,697.99

Object: 61310 – FOOD
2023 11 5/05/2023 0423SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 61310 -431.43 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055014
2023 11 5/11/2023 DU96425 DU96425 Expenditures 685010 60 61310 231.00 Southbay Food Reimb. CK#519 C99999
2023 11 5/26/2023 0523SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 61310 -241.49 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055920

Total 61310 – FOOD -441.92

Object: 61425 – OTHER HOUSEHOLD EXP-SERVICES
2023 11 5/05/2023 0423SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 61425 -317.43 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055014
2023 11 5/19/2023 269792 Expenditures 685010 60 61425 -261.63 MID VALLEY SUPP SVFD V481 00431940
2023 11 5/26/2023 0523SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 61425 -409.48 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055920

Total 61425 – OTHER HOUSEHOLD EXP-SERVICES -988.54

Object: 61720 – MAINT-MOBILE EQUIPMENT-SERV
2023 11 5/05/2023 0423SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 61720 -2,108.82 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055014
2023 11 5/05/2023 0523SVFD2 Expenditures 685010 60 61720 -29.05 SCARBOROUGH LUM SVFD Acct 1169 V1233 00430714
2023 11 5/05/2023 9367 Expenditures 685010 60 61720 -3,043.61 CENTRAL FIRE PR SVFD V116886 00430711
2023 11 5/05/2023 9372 Expenditures 685010 60 61720 -1,230.13 CENTRAL FIRE PR SVFD V116886 00430711
2023 11 5/19/2023 CI037801 Expenditures 685010 60 61720 -113.59 GOLDEN STATE EM SVFD PIE-0143 V129826 00431939
2023 11 5/19/2023 CI039147 Expenditures 685010 60 61720 -29.74 GOLDEN STATE EM SVFD PIE-0143 V129826 00431939
2023 11 5/26/2023 0523SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 61720 -528.39 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055920
2023 11 5/26/2023 CI039102 Expenditures 685010 60 61720 -106.03 GOLDEN STATE EM SVFD PIE-0143 V129826 00432483

Page 2 of 4



Actual  Transactions

Run: 2023-06-01 10:52 AM

Transaction Type = Actual; Revenues/Expenditures = R,(E; Chart Fields = GLKey,Character,Object
Post On [@prior-month] and Revenues/Expenditures [XP] and GL Key [685010, 685030, 685040]

Year
Fiscal

Month
Fiscal

On
Post

Document No Doc Ref Revenues/Expenditures GL Key Character Object Amount Description Vendor No Warrant No

GL Key: 685010 – SCOTTS VALLEY FIRE PROT SVC
Character: 60 – SERVICES AND SUPPLIES

Object: 61720 – MAINT-MOBILE EQUIPMENT-SERV
2023 11 5/26/2023 CI039148 Expenditures 685010 60 61720 -906.80 GOLDEN STATE EM SVFD PIE-0143 V129826 00432483

Total 61720 – MAINT-MOBILE EQUIPMENT-SERV -8,096.16

Object: 61725 – MAINT-OFFICE EQUIPMNT-SERVICES
2023 11 5/05/2023 14805 Expenditures 685010 60 61725 -1,861.00 PAGODA TECHNOLO SVFD V125184 00430713

Total 61725 – MAINT-OFFICE EQUIPMNT-SERVICES -1,861.00

Object: 61730 – MAINT-OTH EQUIP-SERVICES
2023 11 5/05/2023 0423SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 61730 -169.81 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055014
2023 11 5/15/2023 SCOAS2022 Expenditures 685010 60 61730 -2,000.00 SAN LORENZO VAL SVFD V107826 00431427
2023 11 5/26/2023 0523SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 61730 -78.62 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055920

Total 61730 – MAINT-OTH EQUIP-SERVICES -2,248.43

Object: 61845 – MAINT-STRUCT/IMPS/GRDS-OTH-SRV
2023 11 5/05/2023 0423SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 61845 -1,068.41 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055014
2023 11 5/05/2023 0523SVFD1 Expenditures 685010 60 61845 -191.86 SCARBOROUGH LUM SVFD Acct 1169 V1233 00430714
2023 11 5/26/2023 0523SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 61845 -125.39 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055920

Total 61845 – MAINT-STRUCT/IMPS/GRDS-OTH-SRV -1,385.66

Object: 61920 – MEDICAL, DENTAL & LAB SUPPLIES
2023 11 5/05/2023 0423SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 61920 -30.72 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055014
2023 11 5/26/2023 0523SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 61920 -104.00 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055920

Total 61920 – MEDICAL, DENTAL & LAB SUPPLIES -134.72

Object: 62020 – MEMBERSHIPS
2023 11 5/05/2023 0423SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 62020 -235.00 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055014

Total 62020 – MEMBERSHIPS -235.00

Object: 62219 – PC SOFTWARE PURCHASES
2023 11 5/05/2023 0423SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 62219 -263.48 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055014
2023 11 5/05/2023 14830 Expenditures 685010 60 62219 -201.78 PAGODA TECHNOLO SVFD V125184 00430713
2023 11 5/26/2023 0523SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 62219 -187.37 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055920
2023 11 5/26/2023 72011 Expenditures 685010 60 62219 -71.88 TARGET SOLUTION SVFD V31376 00432485

Total 62219 – PC SOFTWARE PURCHASES -724.51

Object: 62223 – SUPPLIES
2023 11 5/05/2023 0423SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 62223 -912.54 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055014
2023 11 5/05/2023 14782 Expenditures 685010 60 62223 -2,550.97 PAGODA TECHNOLO SVFD V125184 00430713
2023 11 5/26/2023 0523SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 62223 -1,455.36 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055920

Total 62223 – SUPPLIES -4,918.87

Object: 62381 – PROF & SPECIAL SERV-OTHER
2023 11 5/05/2023 0523SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 62381 -2,288.25 DAWSON PASSAFUI SVFD V125913 00430712
2023 11 5/15/2023 228147 Expenditures 685010 60 62381 -187.50 VOYA RETIREMENT SVFD V31933 00431320
2023 11 5/19/2023 50882 Expenditures 685010 60 62381 -845.00 CSG CONSULTANTS SVFD V121100 00431938
2023 11 5/26/2023 240783 Expenditures 685010 60 62381 -1,700.00 LIEBERT CASSIDY SVFD V119863 00432484
2023 11 5/26/2023 241792 Expenditures 685010 60 62381 -7,558.00 LIEBERT CASSIDY SVFD V119863 00432484

Total 62381 – PROF & SPECIAL SERV-OTHER -12,578.75

Object: 62715 – SMALL TOOLS & INSTRUMENTS
2023 11 5/05/2023 0423SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 62715 -874.00 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055014
2023 11 5/26/2023 0523SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 62715 -46.62 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055920

Total 62715 – SMALL TOOLS & INSTRUMENTS -920.62

Object: 62826 – EDUCATION AND/OR TRAINING
2023 11 5/05/2023 0423SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 62826 -690.00 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055014
2023 11 5/15/2023 0523SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 62826 -177.20 WALTON, ALICIA SVFD V119128 00431302
2023 11 5/15/2023 0523SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 62826 -141.00 BRIDGES, MEGAN SVFD V126414 00431300
2023 11 5/15/2023 0523SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 62826 -715.00 POST, WILLEM SVFD V37872 00431301
2023 11 5/22/2023 0523SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 62826 -141.00 Jackson, Michel SVFD V45625 00431948

Total 62826 – EDUCATION AND/OR TRAINING -1,864.20

Page 3 of 4



Actual  Transactions

Run: 2023-06-01 10:52 AM

Transaction Type = Actual; Revenues/Expenditures = R,(E; Chart Fields = GLKey,Character,Object
Post On [@prior-month] and Revenues/Expenditures [XP] and GL Key [685010, 685030, 685040]

Year
Fiscal

Month
Fiscal

On
Post

Document No Doc Ref Revenues/Expenditures GL Key Character Object Amount Description Vendor No Warrant No

GL Key: 685010 – SCOTTS VALLEY FIRE PROT SVC
Character: 60 – SERVICES AND SUPPLIES

Object: 62888 – SPEC DIST EXP-SERVICES
2023 11 5/26/2023 0523SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 62888 -1,749.92 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055920

Total 62888 – SPEC DIST EXP-SERVICES -1,749.92

Object: 62914 – EDUCATION & TRAINING(REPT)
2023 11 5/05/2023 0423SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 62914 -1,441.61 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055014
2023 11 5/05/2023 0523SVFD3 Expenditures 685010 60 62914 -721.60 SCARBOROUGH LUM SVFD Acct 1169 V1233 00430714
2023 11 5/26/2023 0523SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 62914 -1,776.28 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055920

Total 62914 – EDUCATION & TRAINING(REPT) -3,939.49

Object: 62920 – GAS, OIL, FUEL
2023 11 5/05/2023 0423SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 62920 -52.40 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055014
2023 11 5/26/2023 839180 Expenditures 685010 60 62920 -2,118.95 WESTERN STATES SVFD V39738 00432486

Total 62920 – GAS, OIL, FUEL -2,171.35

Object: 63070 – UTILITIES
2023 11 5/05/2023 0423SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 63070 -1,663.93 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055014
2023 11 5/19/2023 0523SVFD1 Expenditures 685010 60 63070 -585.08 PACIFIC GAS AND SVFD V129169 00431758
2023 11 5/19/2023 0523SVFD2 Expenditures 685010 60 63070 -174.24 PACIFIC GAS AND SVFD V129169 00431758
2023 11 5/19/2023 0523SVFD3 Expenditures 685010 60 63070 -457.10 PACIFIC GAS AND SVFD V129169 00431758
2023 11 5/19/2023 0523SVFD4 Expenditures 685010 60 63070 -108.86 PACIFIC GAS AND SVFD V129169 00431758
2023 11 5/26/2023 0523SVFD Expenditures 685010 60 63070 -840.85 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055920

Total 63070 – UTILITIES -3,830.06
Total 60 – SERVICES AND SUPPLIES -54,273.28

Total 685010 – SCOTTS VALLEY FIRE PROT SVC -732,872.16

GL Key: 685030 – SCOTTS VLY FIRE DIST.-CAPITAL
Character: 60 – SERVICES AND SUPPLIES

Object: 61215 – RADIO
2023 11 5/03/2023 133 Expenditures 685030 60 61215 -1,004.00 WISE, CHARLES E SVFD V42413 00430343
2023 11 5/05/2023 0423SVFD Expenditures 685030 60 61215 -116.69 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055014

Total 61215 – RADIO -1,120.69
Total 60 – SERVICES AND SUPPLIES -1,120.69

Total 685030 – SCOTTS VLY FIRE DIST.-CAPITAL -1,120.69

GL Key: 685040 – SV FIRE DIST-REGIONAL HAZ RESP
Character: 60 – SERVICES AND SUPPLIES

Object: 61221 – TELEPHONE-NON TELECOM 1099
2023 11 5/05/2023 0423SVFD Expenditures 685040 60 61221 -76.02 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055014
2023 11 5/26/2023 0523SVFD Expenditures 685040 60 61221 -152.04 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055920

Total 61221 – TELEPHONE-NON TELECOM 1099 -228.06

Object: 62365 – MANAGEMENT SERVICES
2023 11 5/19/2023 22235 Expenditures 685040 60 62365 -6,000.00 SCOTTS VALLEY F SVFD V128300 00431941

Total 62365 – MANAGEMENT SERVICES -6,000.00

Object: 62920 – GAS, OIL, FUEL
2023 11 5/26/2023 0523SVFD Expenditures 685040 60 62920 -74.16 U S BANK CORPOR SVFD 4246-0445 V992019 80055920

Total 62920 – GAS, OIL, FUEL -74.16
Total 60 – SERVICES AND SUPPLIES -6,302.22

Character: 70 – OTHER CHARGES
Object: 75268 – OTHER CHARGES-OTHER

2023 11 5/19/2023 22231 Expenditures 685040 70 75268 -35,000.00 CENTRAL FIRE PR SVFD V116886 00431937
2023 11 5/19/2023 22233 Expenditures 685040 70 75268 -40,000.00 SCOTTS VALLEY F SVFD V128300 00431941
2023 11 5/19/2023 22234 Expenditures 685040 70 75268 -5,000.00 WATSONVILLE FIR SCHMIT V117485 00431942
2023 11 5/22/2023 22232 Expenditures 685040 70 75268 -40,000.00 SANTA CRUZ FIRE SCHMIT V120003 00432092

Total 75268 – OTHER CHARGES-OTHER -120,000.00
Total 70 – OTHER CHARGES -120,000.00

Total 685040 – SV FIRE DIST-REGIONAL HAZ RESP -126,302.22
-860,295.07

Page 4 of 4







 

SCOTTS VALLEY 
FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
 

7 Erba Lane, Scotts Valley, California 95066 (831) 438-0211 Fax (831) 438-0383 

Ron Whittle 
Fire Chief 
 

 
Board of Directors 

Joe Parker     Russ Patterson     Daron Pisciotta     Kris Hurst    Adam Cosner 
 

Date:    June 14, 2023 
 
To:    Board of Directors 
 
From:   Chief Whittle 
  
Subject: Surplus Equipment 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
Declare the following list of equipment as surplus property, and remove from District inventory. 
 
Direct the Chief to dispose of the equipment utilizing a bid process, donation or recycling. 
 
Discussion 
 
The fixed asset items listed are no longer in use, and require Board action to declare items as surplus 
property. 
 
 
 
 
 Inventory # Item Purchased Amount 

10920 File, Lateral Wood 2 Drawer – Admin Office 1/1/1983 $415.00 

10925 File Lateral 4 Drawer (Small) Captain Dorm 7/1/1996 $314.00 

21121 RIC Pack Regulator – Grant  3/21/2005 $410.32 

21129 RIC Pack SCOTT – Grant  3/21/2005 $1,139.40 

30489 iPad – 16GB W/Keyboard 5/31/2013 $766.14 

30587 iPad Pro 32gb – E2512 2/2/2017 $848.68 

30631 EMS iPad (Destroyed) 1/1/2018 $330.91 

30632 EMS iPad 1/1/2018 $330.91 

  Total $4,555.36 



 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District 

 

 

 

POLICY:   808 SUBJECT: Outside Employment 
DATE APPROVED: 06/14/2023   
 

BOARD PRESIDENT: 

  

FIRE CHIEF: 
 

    

 

 

 

POLICY No.   808                                                                                                 Page 1 of 4                                                                                                                 

 

PURPOSE  

In order to avoid actual or perceived conflicts of interest for Scotts Valley Fire Protection 

District (SVFPD) employees engaging in outside employment, all employees shall notify the 

Fire Chief prior to engaging in any secondary employment.  Approval of secondary 

employment shall be at the discretion of the Fire Chief in accordance with the provision of 

this policy. 

Definitions 

Outside Employment - Any employee of the SVFPD who receives wages, compensation or 

other consideration of value from another employer, organization or individual not affiliated 

directly with the SVFPD for services, product(s) or benefits rendered.  For purposes of this 

section, the definition of outside employment includes those employees who are self-

employed and not affiliated directly with the SVFPD for services, products(s) or benefits 

rendered. 

Employee – For the purposes of interpretation of this policy, “employee” shall mean any 

person holding full time or part time employment with the SVFPD. 

POLICY  

It is the policy of the SVFPD to allow employees to engage in employment other than with 

the SVFPD if the Fire Chief determines that such outside employment is not in conflict with 

his/her duties and the duties, functions and responsibilities of the SVFPD.  

PROCEDURE  

No employee shall be employed or self-employed in any manner outside of SVFPD 

employment without prior notification to the Fire Chief. Failure to provide notification of 

outside employment or engaging in outside employment prohibited by this policy may lead 

to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal. 

The employee must fill out the NOTIFICATION OF OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT form 

found in this policy, which shall be submitted to the employee’s immediate supervisor.  The 

notice will then be forwarded through the chain of command to the Fire Chief for 

consideration. 

The Fire Chief shall review the Notification of Outside Employment notice to determine the 

outside employment does not conflict with this policy.  The Fire Chief may make any 

restrictions on outside employment consistent with operation of the SVFPD.  



 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District 

 

 

 

 

POLICY: 

 

808 

 

SUBJECT: 
 

Outside Employment 

 

POLICY No. 808                                                                                                 Page 2 of 4                                                                                                                 

 

PROHIBITED OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT  

The Fire Chief, at his/her discretion, may prohibit or restrict an employee seeking to engage 

in any activity which (Government Code § 1126 through Government Code § 1129):  

a) Involves the employee’s use of SVFPD time, facilities, equipment or supplies, or the use 

of the SVFPD badge, uniform, prestige or influence for private gain or advantage. 

b) Involves the employee’s receipt or acceptance of any money or other consideration from 

anyone other than the SVFPD for the performance of an act which the employee, if not 

performing such act, would be required or expected to render in the regular course of 

employment or as a part of the employee’s duties as an employee of the SVFPD.  

c) Involves the performance of an act in other than the employee’s capacity as an employee 

of the SVFPD that may later be subject directly or indirectly to the control, inspection, 

review, audit or enforcement of any other employee of the SVFPD.  

d) Involves time demands that would render performance of the employee’s duties for the 

SVFPD less efficient.  

e) Involves time demands that would affect the employee’s regular work shift or ability to 

respond to emergencies or mandated overtime.  

f) Would otherwise compromise the ability of the SVFPD to conduct its business in an 

efficient manner.  

g) Would give the appearance of impropriety or otherwise appear inconsistent, 

incompatible or in conflict with the employee’s employment with the SVFPD.  

 

FURTHER INCOMPATIBILITIES OF OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT  

Any outside employment may be prohibited or restricted under the following circumstances:  

a) Should an employee’s performance at the SVFPD decline to a point where it is evaluated 

by a supervisor as needing improvement to reach an overall level of competency, the 

Fire Chief may, at his/her discretion, prohibit or restrict any outside employment.  

b) Prohibition or restriction of outside employment may be included as a term or condition 

of sustained discipline.  

c) If, at any time an employee’s conduct or outside employment conflicts with the 

provisions of SVFPD policy, the approval for outside employment may be withdrawn.  

d) Involves employment with an individual or organization that does business with the 

SVFPD. 



 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District 

 

 

 

 

POLICY: 

 

808 

 

SUBJECT: 
 

Outside Employment 

 

POLICY No. 808                                                                                                 Page 3 of 4                                                                                                                 

 

e) When an employee is unable to perform at a full-duty capacity due to an injury or other 

condition, outside employment may be prohibited or restricted until the employee has 

returned to full-duty status for any of the following reasons: 

(1) The outside employment is medically detrimental to the total recovery of the 

disabled employee, as indicated by the SVFPD’s medical advisers.  

(2) The outside employment performed requires the same or similar physical 

ability as would be required of an on-duty employee.  

(3) The employee fails to make timely notice of his/her intention to continue 

outside employment to his/her supervisor.  

APPEALS  

If an employee’s outside employment is prohibited or restricted, the employee should be 

informed of the action and reason in writing.  

The employee may file a written notice of appeal to the Fire Chief within 10 days of the date 

of the written notification.  

If the employee’s appeal is denied, the employee may file a grievance pursuant to the 

procedure set forth in the current collective bargaining agreement and/or the Grievance 

Procedure Policy.  

CHANGES IN OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT STATUS  

If an employee terminates his/her outside employment, the employee should promptly 

submit written notification of such termination to the Fire Chief. Any subsequent 

notifications for outside employment should be processed and approved through normal 

procedures set forth in this policy.  

Employees should also promptly submit in writing to the Fire Chief any material changes in 

outside employment, including any change in the number of hours, types of duties or 

demands of any approved outside employment. Employees who are uncertain whether a 

change in outside employment is material should report the change.  

SVFPD employees, who are engaged in outside employment while on full duty and are 

placed on disability leave or temporary modified duty due to illness or injury, should inform 

their immediate supervisor in writing within five days regarding whether they intend to 

continue to engage in outside employment while on leave or modified-duty status.  

PROHIBITED USE OF SVFPD RESOURCES  

Employees are prohibited from using any SVFPD equipment or resources in the course of or 

for the benefit of any outside employment, unless approved by the Fire Chief. This includes 

access to official records or databases of this SVFPD or other agencies through the 

employee’s position with this SVFPD.  



 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District 

 

 

 

 

POLICY: 

 

808 

 

SUBJECT: 
 

Outside Employment 

 

POLICY No. 808                                                                                                 Page 4 of 4                                                                                                                 

 

 

 

NOTIFICATION OF OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT 

 

Name_____________________ Rank________________ Supervisor__________________ 

 

Name of Outside Employer: _____________________  Telephone#: __________________ 

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION 

Address/Location Of Worksite:_________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

Position:_______________________ 

Anticipated Start Date: __________________  Anticipated End Date: __________________ 

Detailed description of duties to be performed: 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

Days/hours work to be performed: ____________________  Avg hours/month __________ 

Employees Signature:_____________________________________   Date:______________ 

Supervisor Signature: _____________________________________   Date: _____________ 

Comments (if request is denied):  

__________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________                                       _____________________ 

Fire Chiefs Signature        Date 

 







































































































































































1000 Bishops Gate Blv. Ste 300                                                                                              
Mt. Laurel, NJ  08054-5404                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

t1.800.444.4554  Opt.2                                                            
f1.800.777.3929

Through ongoing research and loss experience analysis, we identified additional differentiation in 
fire loss experience within our PPC program, which resulted in the revised classifications. We based 
the differing fire loss experience on the fire suppression capabilities of each community. The new 
classifications will improve the predictive value for insurers while benefiting both commercial and 
residential property owners. We’ve published the new classifications as “X” and “Y” — formerly the 
“9” and “8B” portion of the split classification, respectively. For example:
•        A community currently graded as a split 6/9 classification will now be a split 6/6X 
          classification;  with the “6X” denoting what was formerly classified as “9.”
•        Similarly, a community currently graded as a split 6/8B classification will now be a 
          split  6/6Y classification, the “6Y” denoting what was formerly classified as “8B.”

We wish to thank you and Chief Ron Whittle for your cooperation during our recent Public 
Protection Classification (PPC) survey. ISO has completed its analysis of the structural fire 
suppression delivery system provided in your community. The resulting classification is indicated 
above.

Dear Mr. Russ Patterson,

Each insurance company independently determines the premiums it charges its policyholders. The 
way an insurer uses ISO’s information on public fire protection may depend on several things – the 
company’s fire-loss experience, ratemaking methodology, underwriting guidelines, and its 
marketing strategy.

If you would like to know more about your community’s PPC classification, or if you would like to 
learn about the potential effect of proposed changes to your fire suppression delivery system, 
please call us at the phone number listed below.

ISO’s Public Protection Classification Program (PPC) plays an important role in the underwriting 
process at insurance companies. In fact, most U.S. insurers – including the largest ones – use PPC 
information as part of their decision- making when deciding what business to write, coverage’s  to 
offer or prices to charge for personal or commercial property insurance.

May 30, 2023

RE: Scotts Valley Fpsa, Santa Cruz County, California North

Mr. Russ Patterson, President
Scotts Valley FPSA
7 Erba Lane
Scotts Valley, California, 95066

Public Protection Classification: 02/10
Effective Date: September 01, 2023



Sincerely,

cc:

Chief Ron Whittle Chief, Santa Cruz Fire Department

Ms. Stephanie French, Operations Manager, Santa Cruz Regional 911

•       Communities graded with single “9” or “8B” classifications will remain intact.                                                          
•       Properties over 5 road miles from a recognized fire station would receive a class 10.

PPC is important to communities and fire departments as well. Communities whose PPC improves 
may get lower insurance prices. PPC also provides fire departments with a valuable benchmark, and 
is used by many departments as a valuable tool when planning, budgeting and justifying fire 
protection improvements.

Alex Shubert

Mr. Mali LaGoe, City Manager, SCOTTS VALLEY, SANTA CRUZ

Mr. Waldo Buford, Water Superintendent, Big Redwood Park Water

If you have any questions about your classification, please let us know.

Alex Shubert

ISO is the leading supplier of data and analytics for the property/casualty insurance industry.  Most 
insurers use PPC classifications for underwriting and calculating premiums for residential, 
commercial and industrial properties. The PPC program is not intended to analyze all aspects of a 
comprehensive structural fire suppression delivery system program. It is not for purposes of 
determining compliance with any state or local law, nor is it for making loss prevention or life safety 
recommendations.

Chief Steve Walpole, Chief Administrative Officer, Scotts Valley Police Department

Manager -National Processing Center

ISO appreciates the high level of cooperation extended by local officials during the entire PPC 
survey process. The community protection baseline information gathered by ISO is an essential 
foundation upon which determination of the relative level of fire protection is made using the Fire 
Suppression Rating Schedule.

The classification is a direct result of the information gathered, and is dependent on the resource 
levels devoted to fire protection in existence at the time of survey. Material changes in those 
resources that occur after the survey is completed may affect the classification. Although ISO 
maintains a pro-active process to keep baseline information as current as possible, in the event of 
changes please call us at 1-800-444-4554, option 2 to expedite the update activity.

Mr. Dave McNair, General Manager, Scotts Valley Water District

Mr. Chuck Wysong, Water Superintendent, Mission Springs Conference Grounds

Mr. Josh Wolff, Engineer, San Lorenzo Valley Water District

Mr. David Tannaci, Engineer, Santa Cruz Water Department



   
 

PPC is a registered trademark of Insurance Services Office, Inc. 
   

 
 

Public Protection Classification  

(PPC©) 

Summary Report 

 

 

Scotts Valley FPSA 

 

California (N) 
 

Prepared by 
 

Insurance Services Office, Inc. 
1000 Bishops Gate Blvd., Ste. 300 

P.O. Box 5404 
Mt. Laurel, New Jersey   08054-5404 

1-800-444-4554 
 

Report Created May 2023                        
Effective September 1, 2023 



   
 

PPC is a registered trademark of Insurance Services Office, Inc. 
 Page 1  

Background Information 
 

Introduction  
ISO collects and evaluates information from communities in the United States on their 
structure fire suppression capabilities. The data is analyzed using our Fire Suppression 
Rating Schedule (FSRS) and then a Public Protection Classification (PPC©) grade is 
assigned to the community. The surveys are conducted whenever it appears that there is a 
possibility of a PPC change. As such, the PPC program provides important, up-to-date 
information about fire protection services throughout the country.   
The FSRS recognizes fire protection features only as they relate to suppression of first alarm 
structure fires. In many communities, fire suppression may be only a small part of the fire 
department's overall responsibility. ISO recognizes the dynamic and comprehensive duties of 
a community's fire service, and understands the complex decisions a community must make 
in planning and delivering emergency services. However, in developing a community’s PPC 
grade, only features related to reducing property losses from structural fires are evaluated. 
Multiple alarms, simultaneous incidents and life safety are not considered in this evaluation. 
The PPC program evaluates the fire protection for small to average size buildings. Specific 
properties with a Needed Fire Flow in excess of 3,500 gpm are evaluated separately and 
assigned an individual PPC grade.  
A community's investment in fire mitigation is a proven and reliable predictor of future fire 
losses.  Statistical data on insurance losses bears out the relationship between excellent fire 
protection – as measured by the PPC program – and low fire losses.  So, insurance 
companies use PPC information for marketing, underwriting, and to help establish fair 
premiums for homeowners and commercial fire insurance.  In general, the price of fire 
insurance in a community with a good PPC grade is substantially lower than in a community 
with a poor PPC grade, assuming all other factors are equal. 
ISO is an independent company that serves insurance companies, communities, fire 
departments, insurance regulators, and others by providing information about risk. ISO's 
expert staff collects information about municipal fire suppression efforts in communities 
throughout the United States. In each of those communities, ISO analyzes the relevant data 
and assigns a PPC grade – a number from 1 to 10. Class 1 represents an exemplary fire 
suppression program, and Class 10 indicates that the area's fire suppression program does 
not meet ISO's minimum criteria. 
ISO's PPC program evaluates communities according to a uniform set of criteria, 
incorporating nationally recognized standards developed by the National Fire Protection 
Association and the American Water Works Association.  A community's PPC grade 
depends on: 

 Needed Fire Flows, which are representative building locations used to determine 
the theoretical amount of water necessary for fire suppression purposes. 

 Emergency Communications, including emergency reporting, telecommunicators, 
and dispatching systems. 

 Fire Department, including equipment, staffing, training, geographic distribution of 
fire companies, operational considerations, and community risk reduction. 

 Water Supply, including inspection and flow testing of hydrants, alternative water 
supply operations, and a careful evaluation of the amount of available water 
compared with the amount needed to suppress fires up to 3,500 gpm.   



   
 

PPC is a registered trademark of Insurance Services Office, Inc. 
 Page 2  

Data Collection and Analysis 
ISO has evaluated and classified over 39,000 fire protection areas across the United States 
using its FSRS. A combination of meetings between trained ISO field representatives and the 
dispatch center coordinator, community fire official, and water superintendent is used in 
conjunction with a comprehensive questionnaire to collect the data necessary to determine 
the PPC grade.  In order for a community to obtain a grade better than a Class 9, three 
elements of fire suppression features are reviewed. These three elements are Emergency 
Communications, Fire Department, and Water Supply. 
A review of the Emergency Communications accounts for 10% of the total classification. 
This section is weighted at 10 points, as follows: 

 Emergency Reporting    3 points 

 Telecommunicators    4 points 

 Dispatch Circuits   3 points 
 

A review of the Fire Department accounts for 50% of the total classification. ISO focuses on 
a fire department's first alarm response and initial attack to minimize potential loss. The fire 
department section is weighted at 50 points, as follows: 

 Engine Companies     6 points 

 Reserve Pumpers     0.5 points 

 Pump Capacity       3 points 

 Ladder/Service Companies    4 points 

 Reserve Ladder/Service Trucks   0.5 points  

 Deployment Analysis     10 points 

 Company Personnel     15 points 

 Training       9 points 

 Operational considerations     2 points 

 Community Risk Reduction     5.5 points (in addition to the 50 points above)  
 

A review of the Water Supply system accounts for 40% of the total classification. ISO 
reviews the water supply a community uses to determine the adequacy for fire suppression 
purposes. The water supply system is weighted at 40 points, as follows: 

 Credit for Supply System  30 points 

 Hydrant Size, Type & Installation   3 points 

 Inspection & Flow Testing of Hydrants   7 points 
 
 
 



   
 

PPC is a registered trademark of Insurance Services Office, Inc. 
 Page 3  

There is one additional factor considered in calculating the final score – Divergence.   
Even the best fire department will be less than fully effective if it has an inadequate water 
supply. Similarly, even a superior water supply will be less than fully effective if the fire 
department lacks the equipment or personnel to use the water. The FSRS score is subject to 
modification by a divergence factor, which recognizes disparity between the effectiveness of 
the fire department and the water supply. 
The Divergence factor mathematically reduces the score based upon the relative difference 
between the fire department and water supply scores.  The factor is introduced in the final 
equation. 
  

 PPC Grade 

The PPC grade assigned to the community will depend on the community's score on a 
100-point scale: 

PPC Points 
1 90.00 or more 
2 80.00 to 89.99 
3 70.00 to 79.99 
4 60.00 to 69.99 
5 50.00 to 59.99 
6 40.00 to 49.99 
7 30.00 to 39.99 
8 20.00 to 29.99 
9 10.00 to 19.99 

10 0.00 to 9.99 
 
The classification numbers are interpreted as follows: 

 Class 1 through (and including) Class 8 represents a fire suppression system that 
includes an FSRS creditable dispatch center, fire department, and water supply. 

 Class 8B is a special classification that recognizes a superior level of fire 
protection in otherwise Class 9 areas.  It is designed to represent a fire protection 
delivery system that is superior except for a lack of a water supply system 
capable of the minimum FSRS fire flow criteria of 250 gpm for 2 hours. 

 Class 9 is a fire suppression system that includes a creditable dispatch center, fire 
department but no FSRS creditable water supply. 

 Class 10 does not meet minimum FSRS criteria for recognition, including areas 
that are beyond five road miles of a recognized fire station. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



   
 

PPC is a registered trademark of Insurance Services Office, Inc. 
 Page 4  

New PPC program changes effective July 1, 2014 
 
We have revised the PPC program to capture the effects of enhanced fire protection 
capabilities that reduce fire loss and fire severity in Split Class 9 and Split Class 8B areas (as 
outlined below). This new structure benefits the fire service, community, and property owner. 
 
New classifications  
Through ongoing research and loss experience analysis, we identified additional 
differentiation in fire loss experience within our PPC program, which resulted in the revised 
classifications. We based the differing fire loss experience on the fire suppression capabilities 
of each community. The new PPC classes will improve the predictive value for insurers while 
benefiting both commercial and residential property owners. Here are the new classifications 
and what they mean.  
 
Split classifications  
When we develop a split classification for a community — for example 5/9 — the first number 
is the class that applies to properties within 5 road miles of the responding fire station and 
1,000 feet of a creditable water supply, such as a fire hydrant, suction point, or dry hydrant. 
The second number is the class that applies to properties within 5 road miles of a fire station 
but beyond 1,000 feet of a creditable water supply. We have revised the classification to 
reflect more precisely the risk of loss in a community, replacing Class 9 and 8B in the second 
part of a split classification with revised designations.  
 
What’s changed with the new classifications? 
We’ve published the new classifications as “X” and “Y” — formerly the "9" and "8B" portion of 
the split classification, respectively. For example: 
 

 A community currently displayed as a split 6/9 classification will now be a split 6/6X 
classification; with the "6X" denoting what was formerly classified as "9".  

 Similarly, a community currently graded as a split 6/8B classification will now be a split 
6/6Y classification, the "6Y" denoting what was formerly classified as "8B".  

 Communities graded with single “9” or “8B” classifications will remain intact.  

 
 
 
 
 



   
 

PPC is a registered trademark of Insurance Services Office, Inc. 
 Page 5  

What’s changed? 
As you can see, we’re still maintaining split classes, but it’s how we represent them to 
insurers that’s changed. The new designations reflect a reduction in fire severity and loss and 
have the potential to reduce property insurance premiums. 
 
Benefits of the revised split class designations 

 To the fire service, the revised designations identify enhanced fire suppression 
capabilities used throughout the fire protection area 

 To the community, the new classes reward a community’s fire suppression efforts by 
showing a more reflective designation 

 To the individual property owner, the revisions offer the potential for decreased property 
insurance premiums 
 
New water class 
Our data also shows that risks located more than 5 but less than 7 road miles from a 
responding fire station with a creditable water source within 1,000 feet had better loss 
experience than those farther than 5 road miles from a responding fire station with no 
creditable water source. We’ve introduced a new classification —10W — to recognize the 
reduced loss potential of such properties.  
  
What’s changed with Class 10W? 
Class 10W is property-specific. Not all properties in the 5-to-7-mile area around the 
responding fire station will qualify. The difference between Class 10 and 10W is that the 
10W-graded risk or property is within 1,000 feet of a creditable water supply. Creditable water 
supplies include fire protection systems using hauled water in any of the split classification 
areas.  
 
What’s the benefit of Class 10W? 
10W gives credit to risks within 5 to 7 road miles of the responding fire station and within 
1,000 feet of a creditable water supply. That’s reflective of the potential for reduced property 
insurance premiums. 
 
What does the fire chief have to do? 
Fire chiefs don’t have to do anything at all. The revised classifications went in place 
automatically effective July 1, 2014 (July 1, 2015 for Texas).  
 
What if I have additional questions? 
Feel free to contact ISO at 800.444.4554 or email us at PPC-Cust-Serv@iso.com. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   
 

PPC is a registered trademark of Insurance Services Office, Inc. 
 Page 6  

Distribution of PPC Grades 
The 2020 published countrywide distribution of communities by the PPC grade is as 
follows:  

 

 
Assistance 

The PPC program offers help to communities, fire departments, and other public officials as 
they plan for, budget, and justify improvements.  ISO is also available to assist in the 
understanding of the details of this evaluation.   
The PPC program representatives can be reached by telephone at (800) 444-4554.  The 
technical specialists at this telephone number have access to the details of this evaluation 
and can effectively speak with you about your questions regarding the PPC program.  What's 
more, we can be reached via the internet at www.isomitigation.com/talk/. 
We also have a website dedicated to our Community Hazard Mitigation Classification 
programs at www.isomitigation.com.  Here, fire chiefs, building code officials, community 
leaders and other interested citizens can access a wealth of data describing the criteria used 
in evaluating how cities and towns are protecting residents from fire and other natural 
hazards.  This website will allow you to learn more about the PPC program.  The website 
provides important background information, insights about the PPC grading processes and 
technical documents. ISO is also pleased to offer Fire Chiefs Online — a special, secured 
website with information and features that can help improve your PPC grade, including a list 
of the Needed Fire Flows for all the commercial occupancies ISO has on file for your 
community.  Visitors to the site can download information, see statistical results and also 
contact ISO for assistance.   
In addition, on-line access to the FSRS and its commentaries is available to registered 
customers for a fee.  However, fire chiefs and community chief administrative officials are 
given access privileges to this information without charge. 
To become a registered fire chief or community chief administrative official, register at 
www.isomitigation.com.  

 



   
 

PPC is a registered trademark of Insurance Services Office, Inc. 
 Page 7  

PPC Review 

ISO concluded its review of the fire suppression features being provided for Scotts Valley 
FPSA.  The resulting community classification is Class 02/10. 

If the classification is a single class, the classification applies to properties with a Needed Fire 
Flow of 3,500 gpm or less in the community.  If the classification is a split class (e.g., 6/XX): 

 The first class (e.g., “6” in a 6/XX) applies to properties within 5 road miles of a 
recognized fire station and within 1,000 feet of a fire hydrant or alternate water supply. 

 The second class (XX or XY) applies to properties beyond 1,000 feet of a fire hydrant 
but within 5 road miles of a recognized fire station. 

 Alternative Water Supply: The first class (e.g., “6” in a 6/10) applies to properties 
within 5 road miles of a recognized fire station with no hydrant distance requirement. 

 Class 10 applies to properties over 5 road miles of a recognized fire station. 
 Class 10W applies to properties within 5 to 7 road miles of a recognized fire station 

with a recognized water supply within 1,000 feet.   
 Specific properties with a Needed Fire Flow in excess of 3,500 gpm are evaluated 

separately and assigned an individual classification.   
 

FSRS Feature 
Earned 
Credit 

Credit 
Available 

Emergency Communications    
 414. Credit for Emergency Reporting 2.85  3 
 422. Credit for Telecommunicators 3.08  4 
 432. Credit for Dispatch Circuits 3.00  3 
 440. Credit for Emergency Communications 8.93  10 
     
Fire Department    
 513. Credit for Engine Companies 5.93  6 
 523. Credit for Reserve Pumpers 0.50  0.50 
 532. Credit for Pump Capacity 3.00  3 
 549. Credit for Ladder Service 3.83  4 
 553. Credit for Reserve Ladder and Service Trucks 0.00  0.50 
 561. Credit for Deployment Analysis 2.45  10 
 571. Credit for Company Personnel 11.67  15 
 581. Credit for Training 

730. Credit for Operational Considerations 
8.84 
2.00 

 9 
2 

 590. Credit for Fire Department 38.22  50 
     
Water Supply    
 616. Credit for Supply System 26.99  30 
 621. Credit for Hydrants 2.41  3 
 631. Credit for Inspection and Flow Testing 5.58  7 

 640. Credit for Water Supply 34.98  40 
     
Divergence 
1050. Community Risk Reduction 

-2.20 
3.96 

 -- 
5.50 

     
 Total Credit 83.89  105.50 



   
 

PPC is a registered trademark of Insurance Services Office, Inc. 
 Page 8  

Emergency Communications 

Ten percent of a community's overall score is based on how well the communications center 
receives and dispatches fire alarms. Our field representative evaluated: 

• Communications facilities provided for the general public to report structure fires 
 
• Enhanced 9-1-1 Telephone Service including wireless 
 
• Computer-aided dispatch (CAD) facilities 
 
• Alarm receipt and processing at the communication center 
 
• Training and certification of telecommunicators 
 
• Facilities used to dispatch fire department companies to reported structure fires 

 

 
 

Earned 
Credit 

Credit 
Available 

414. Credit Emergency Reporting  2.85 3 

422. Credit for Telecommunicators  3.08 4 

432. Credit for Dispatch Circuits  3.00 3 

Item 440.  Credit for Emergency Communications: 8.93 10 

 

 

Item 414 - Credit for Emergency Reporting (3 points) 

The first item reviewed is Item 414 "Credit for Emergency Reporting (CER)".  This item 
reviews the emergency communication center facilities provided for the public to report fires 
including 911 systems (Basic or Enhanced), Wireless Phase I and Phase II, Voice over 
Internet Protocol, Computer Aided Dispatch and Geographic Information Systems for 
automatic vehicle location. ISO uses National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 1221, 
Standard for the Installation, Maintenance and Use of Emergency Services Communications 
Systems as the reference for this section. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   
 

PPC is a registered trademark of Insurance Services Office, Inc. 
 Page 9  

 
Item 410. Emergency Reporting (CER) 

Earned 
Credit 

Credit 
Available 

 A./B. Basic 9-1-1, Enhanced 9-1-1 or No 9-1-1 20.00 20 

 For maximum credit, there should be an Enhanced 9-1-1 
system, Basic 9-1-1 and No 9-1-1 will receive partial credit. 

  

 1. E9-1-1 Wireless 25.00 25 

 Wireless Phase I using Static ALI (automatic location 
identification) Functionality (10 points);  Wireless Phase II 
using Dynamic ALI Functionality (15 points); Both available 
will be 25 points 

  

 2. E9-1-1 Voice over Internet Protocol (VoIP) 25.00 25 

 Static VoIP using Static ALI Functionality (10 points);  
Nomadic VoIP using Dynamic ALI Functionality (15 points); 
Both available will be 25 points 

  

 3. Computer Aided Dispatch 10.00 15 

 Basic CAD (5 points);  CAD with Management Information 
System (5 points); CAD with Interoperability (5 points) 

  

 4. Geographic Information System (GIS/AVL) 

The PSAP uses a fully integrated CAD/GIS management 
system with automatic vehicle location (AVL) integrated 
with a CAD system providing dispatch assignments. 
 
The individual fire departments being dispatched do not 
need GIS/AVL capability to obtain this credit.  

15.00 15 

 Review of Emergency Reporting total: 95.00 100 

 

 

Item 422- Credit for Telecommunicators (4 points) 

The second item reviewed is Item 422 “Credit for Telecommunicators (TC)”.  This item 
reviews the number of Telecommunicators on duty at the center to handle fire calls and other 
emergencies.  All emergency calls including those calls that do not require fire department 
action are reviewed to determine the proper staffing to answer emergency calls and dispatch 
the appropriate emergency response. The 2013 Edition of NFPA 1221, Standard for the 
Installation, Maintenance and Use of Emergency Services Communications Systems, 
recommends that ninety-five percent of emergency calls shall be answered within 15 
seconds and ninety-nine percent of emergency calls shall be answered within 40 seconds. In 
addition, NFPA recommends that eighty percent of emergency alarm processing shall be 
completed within 60 seconds and ninety-five percent of alarm processing shall be completed 
within 106 seconds of answering the call.      
 
 



   
 

PPC is a registered trademark of Insurance Services Office, Inc. 
 Page 10  

To receive full credit for operators on duty, ISO must review documentation to show that the 
communication center meets NFPA 1221 call answering and dispatch time performance 
measurement standards. This documentation may be in the form of performance statistics or 
other performance measurements compiled by the 9-1-1 software or other software 
programs that are currently in use such as Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) or Management 
Information System (MIS). 
 

 
Item 420. Telecommunicators (CTC) 

Earned 
Credit 

Credit 
Available 

 A1. Alarm Receipt (AR) 19.26 20 

 Receipt of alarms shall meet the requirements in 
accordance with the criteria of NFPA 1221 

  

 A2. Alarm Processing (AP) 17.68 20 

 Processing of alarms shall meet the requirements in 
accordance with the criteria of NFPA 1221 

  

 B. Emergency Dispatch Protocols (EDP) 0.00 20 

 Telecommunicators have emergency dispatch protocols 
(EDP) containing questions and a decision-support 
process to facilitate correct call categorization and 
prioritization. 

  

 C. Telecommunicator Training and Certification (TTC) 20.00 20 

 Telecommunicators meet the qualification requirements 
referenced in NFPA 1061, Standard for Professional 
Qualifications for Public Safety Telecommunicator, 
and/or the Association of Public-Safety Communications 
Officials - International (APCO) Project 33. 
Telecommunicators are certified in the knowledge, skills, 
and abilities corresponding to their job functions. 

  

 D. Telecommunicator Continuing Education and 
Quality Assurance (TQA) 

Telecommunicators participate in continuing education 
and/or in-service training and quality-assurance 
programs as appropriate for their positions 

20.00 20 

 Review of Telecommunicators total: 76.94 100 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   
 

PPC is a registered trademark of Insurance Services Office, Inc. 
 Page 11  

Item 432 - Credit for Dispatch Circuits (3 points) 
The third item reviewed is Item 432 “Credit for Dispatch Circuits (CDC)”. This item reviews 
the dispatch circuit facilities used to transmit alarms to fire department members. A “Dispatch 
Circuit” is defined in NFPA 1221 as “A circuit over which an alarm is transmitted from the 
communications center to an emergency response facility (ERF) or emergency response 
units (ERUs) to notify ERUs to respond to an emergency”.  All fire departments (except single 
fire station departments with full-time firefighter personnel receiving alarms directly at the fire 
station) need adequate means of notifying all firefighter personnel of the location of reported 
structure fires.  The dispatch circuit facilities should be in accordance with the general criteria 
of NFPA 1221.  “Alarms” are defined in this Standard as “A signal or message from a person 
or device indicating the existence of an emergency or other situation that requires action by 
an emergency response agency”.   
There are two different levels of dispatch circuit facilities provided for in the Standard – a 
primary dispatch circuit and a secondary dispatch circuit.  In jurisdictions that receive 730 
alarms or more per year (average of two alarms per 24-hour period), two separate and 
dedicated dispatch circuits, a primary and a secondary, are needed. In jurisdictions receiving 
fewer than 730 alarms per year, a second dedicated dispatch circuit is not needed.  Dispatch 
circuit facilities installed but not used or tested (in accordance with the NFPA Standard) 
receive no credit.       
The score for Credit for Dispatch Circuits (CDC) is influenced by monitoring for integrity of the 
primary dispatch circuit.  There are up to 0.90 points available for this Item.  Monitoring for 
integrity involves installing automatic systems that will detect faults and failures and send 
visual and audible indications to appropriate communications center (or dispatch center) 
personnel. ISO uses NFPA 1221 to guide the evaluation of this item.  ISO's evaluation also 
includes a review of the communication system's emergency power supplies.  
Item 432 “Credit for Dispatch Circuits (CDC)” = 3.00 points 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   
 

PPC is a registered trademark of Insurance Services Office, Inc. 
 Page 12  

Fire Department 

Fifty percent of a community's overall score is based upon the fire department's structure fire 
suppression system. ISO's field representative evaluated: 

 Engine and ladder/service vehicles including reserve apparatus 
 Equipment carried 
 Response to reported structure fires 
 Deployment analysis of companies 
 Available and/or responding firefighters 
 Training 

 

 
 

Earned 
Credit 

Credit 
Available 

513. Credit for Engine Companies  5.93  6  
523. Credit for Reserve Pumpers  0.50  0.5  
532. Credit for Pumper Capacity  3.00  3  
549. Credit for Ladder Service  3.83  4  
553. Credit for Reserve Ladder and Service Trucks  0.00  0.5  
561. Credit for Deployment Analysis  2.45  10  
571. Credit for Company Personnel 11.67       15  
581. Credit for Training  8.84  9  
730. Credit for Operational Considerations 2.00  2  

Item 590.  Credit for Fire Department: 38.22  50  

 
 

Basic Fire Flow 

The Basic Fire Flow for the community is determined by the review of the Needed Fire Flows 
for selected buildings in the community.  The fifth largest Needed Fire Flow is determined to 
be the Basic Fire Flow.  The Basic Fire Flow has been determined to be 3500 gpm. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   
 

PPC is a registered trademark of Insurance Services Office, Inc. 
 Page 13  

Item 513 - Credit for Engine Companies (6 points) 

The first item reviewed is Item 513 "Credit for Engine Companies (CEC)".  This item reviews 
the number of engine companies, their pump capacity, hose testing, pump testing and the 
equipment carried on the in-service pumpers. To be recognized, pumper apparatus must 
meet the general criteria of NFPA 1901, Standard for Automotive Fire Apparatus which 
include a minimum 250 gpm pump, an emergency warning system, a 300 gallon water tank, 
and hose. At least 1 apparatus must have a permanently mounted pump rated at 750 
gpm or more at 150 psi. 
 
The review of the number of needed pumpers considers the response distance to built-upon 
areas; the Basic Fire Flow; and the method of operation. Multiple alarms, simultaneous 
incidents, and life safety are not considered. 
The greatest value of A, B, or C below is needed in the fire district to suppress fires in 
structures with a Needed Fire Flow of 3,500 gpm or less: 3 engine companies 

a) 2 engine companies to provide fire suppression services to areas to meet NFPA 
1710 criteria or within 1½ miles. 

b) 3 engine companies to support a Basic Fire Flow of 3500 gpm. 
c) 2 engine companies based upon the fire department’s method of operation to 

provide a minimum two engine response to all first alarm structure fires. 
The FSRS recognizes that there are 3 engine companies in service.   
 
The FSRS also reviews Automatic Aid.  Automatic Aid is considered in the review as 
assistance dispatched automatically by contractual agreement between two 
communities or fire districts. That differs from mutual aid or assistance arranged case by 
case. ISO will recognize an Automatic Aid plan under the following conditions: 

 It must be prearranged for first alarm response according to a definite plan. It is 
preferable to have a written agreement, but ISO may recognize demonstrated 
performance.  

 The aid must be dispatched to all reported structure fires on the initial alarm.  
 The aid must be provided 24 hours a day, 365 days a year.  

FSRS Item 512.D "Automatic Aid Engine Companies" responding on first alarm and meeting 
the needs of the city for basic fire flow and/or distribution of companies are factored based 
upon the value of the Automatic Aid plan (up to 1.00 can be used as the factor).  The 
Automatic Aid factor is determined by a review of the Automatic Aid provider’s 
communication facilities, how they receive alarms from the graded area, inter-department 
training between fire departments, and the fire ground communications capability between 
departments.   
For each engine company, the credited Pump Capacity (PC), the Hose Carried (HC), the 
Equipment Carried (EC) all contribute to the calculation for the percent of credit the FSRS 
provides to that engine company.   
Item 513 “Credit for Engine Companies (CEC)” = 5.93 points 

 



   
 

PPC is a registered trademark of Insurance Services Office, Inc. 
 Page 14  

 

Item 523 - Credit for Reserve Pumpers (0.50 points) 

The item is Item 523 “Credit for Reserve Pumpers (CRP)”.  This item reviews the number and 
adequacy of the pumpers and their equipment. The number of needed reserve pumpers is 1 
for each 8 needed engine companies determined in Item 513, or any fraction thereof.   
Item 523 “Credit for Reserve Pumpers (CRP)” = 0.50 points 

 

Item 532 – Credit for Pumper Capacity (3 points) 

The next item reviewed is Item 532 “Credit for Pumper Capacity (CPC)”.  The total pump 
capacity available should be sufficient for the Basic Fire Flow of 3500 gpm.  The maximum 
needed pump capacity credited is the Basic Fire Flow of the community.   
Item 532 “Credit for Pumper Capacity (CPC)” = 3.00 points 

 
Item 549 – Credit for Ladder Service (4 points) 
The next item reviewed is Item 549 “Credit for Ladder Service (CLS)”.  This item reviews the 
number of response areas within the city with 5 buildings that are 3 or more stories or 35 feet 
or more in height, or with 5 buildings that have a Needed Fire Flow greater than 3,500 gpm, 
or any combination of these criteria.  The height of all buildings in the city, including those 
protected by automatic sprinklers, is considered when determining the number of needed 
ladder companies.  Response areas not needing a ladder company should have a service 
company.  Ladders, tools and equipment normally carried on ladder trucks are needed not 
only for ladder operations but also for forcible entry, ventilation, salvage, overhaul, lighting 
and utility control.  
The number of ladder or service companies, the height of the aerial ladder, aerial ladder 
testing and the equipment carried on the in-service ladder trucks and service trucks is 
compared with the number of needed ladder trucks and service trucks and an FSRS 
equipment list. Ladder trucks must meet the general criteria of NFPA 1901, Standard for 
Automotive Fire Apparatus to be recognized.  
The number of needed ladder-service trucks is dependent upon the number of buildings 3 
stories or 35 feet or more in height, buildings with a Needed Fire Flow greater than 3,500 
gpm, and the method of operation. 
The FSRS recognizes that there are 1 ladder companies in service.  These companies are 
needed to provide fire suppression services to areas to meet NFPA 1710 criteria or within 2½ 
miles and the number of buildings with a Needed Fire Flow over 3,500 gpm or 3 stories or 
more in height, or the method of operation.      
The FSRS recognizes that there are 0 service companies in service.   
 
Item 549 “Credit for Ladder Service (CLS)” = 3.83 points 

 

 

 



   
 

PPC is a registered trademark of Insurance Services Office, Inc. 
 Page 15  

 

Item 553 – Credit for Reserve Ladder and Service Trucks (0.50 points) 

The next item reviewed is Item 553 “Credit for Reserve Ladder and Service Trucks (CRLS)”. 
This item considers the adequacy of ladder and service apparatus when one (or more in 
larger communities) of these apparatus are out of service. The number of needed reserve 
ladder and service trucks is 1 for each 8 needed ladder and service companies that were 
determined to be needed in Item 540, or any fraction thereof.   
Item 553 “Credit for Reserve Ladder and Service Trucks (CRLS)” = 0.00 points 

 

Item 561 – Deployment Analysis (10 points) 

Next, Item 561 “Deployment Analysis (DA)” is reviewed. This Item examines the number and 
adequacy of existing engine and ladder-service companies to cover built-upon areas of the 
city.   
To determine the Credit for Distribution, first the Existing Engine Company (EC) points and 
the Existing Engine Companies (EE) determined in Item 513 are considered along with 
Ladder Company Equipment (LCE) points, Service Company Equipment (SCE) points, 
Engine-Ladder Company Equipment (ELCE) points, and Engine-Service Company 
Equipment (ESCE) points determined in Item 549.  
Secondly, as an alternative to determining the number of needed engine and 
ladder/service companies through the road-mile analysis, a fire protection area may use 
the results of a systematic performance evaluation. This type of evaluation analyzes 
computer-aided dispatch (CAD) history to demonstrate that, with its current deployment 
of companies, the fire department meets the time constraints for initial arriving engine 
and initial full alarm assignment in accordance with the general criteria of in NFPA 1710, 
Standard for the Organization and Deployment of Fire Suppression Operations, 
Emergency Medical Operations, and Special Operations to the Public by Career Fire 
Departments. 
 
A determination is made of the percentage of built upon area within 1½ miles of a first-due 
engine company and within 2½ miles of a first-due ladder-service company.   
 
Item 561 “Credit Deployment Analysis (DA)” = 2.45 points 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   
 

PPC is a registered trademark of Insurance Services Office, Inc. 
 Page 16  

 

Item 571 – Credit for Company Personnel (15 points) 

Item 571 “Credit for Company Personnel (CCP)” reviews the average number of existing 
firefighters and company officers available to respond to reported first alarm structure fires in 
the city.   
The on-duty strength is determined by the yearly average of total firefighters and company 
officers on-duty considering vacations, sick leave, holidays, “Kelley” days and other 
absences.  When a fire department operates under a minimum staffing policy, this may be 
used in lieu of determining the yearly average of on-duty company personnel.  
Firefighters on apparatus not credited under Items 513 and 549 that regularly respond to 
reported first alarms to aid engine, ladder, and service companies are included in this item as 
increasing the total company strength. 
Firefighters staffing ambulances or other units serving the general public are credited if they 
participate in fire-fighting operations, the number depending upon the extent to which they are 
available and are used for response to first alarms of fire. 
On-Call members are credited on the basis of the average number staffing apparatus on first 
alarms. Off-shift career firefighters and company officers responding on first alarms are 
considered on the same basis as on-call personnel.  For personnel not normally at the fire 
station, the number of responding firefighters and company officers is divided by 3 to reflect 
the time needed to assemble at the fire scene and the reduced ability to act as a team due to 
the various arrival times at the fire location when compared to the personnel on-duty at the 
fire station during the receipt of an alarm.   
The number of Public Safety Officers who are positioned in emergency vehicles within the 
jurisdiction boundaries may be credited based on availability to respond to first alarm 
structure fires.  In recognition of this increased response capability the number of responding 
Public Safety Officers is divided by 2.     
The average number of firefighters and company officers responding with those companies 
credited as Automatic Aid under Items 513 and 549 are considered for either on-duty or on-
call company personnel as is appropriate. The actual number is calculated as the average 
number of company personnel responding multiplied by the value of AA Plan determined in 
Item 512.D. 
The maximum creditable response of on-duty and on-call firefighters is 12, including 
company officers, for each existing engine and ladder company and 6 for each existing 
service company.  
Chief Officers are not creditable except when more than one chief officer responds to alarms; 
then extra chief officers may be credited as firefighters if they perform company duties. 
The FSRS recognizes 8.00 on-duty personnel and an average of 2.00 on-call personnel 
responding on first alarm structure fires.   
Item 571 “Credit for Company Personnel (CCP)” = 11.67 points 

 

 

 

 



   
 

PPC is a registered trademark of Insurance Services Office, Inc. 
 Page 17  

 

Item 581 – Credit for Training (9 points) 

 

 
Training 

Earned 
Credit 

Credit 
Available 

 A. Facilities, and Use  35.00  35 

 For maximum credit, each firefighter should receive 18 hours per year 
in structure fire related subjects as outlined in NFPA 1001.  
  

   

 B. Company Training 25.00  25 

 For maximum credit, each firefighter should receive 16 hours per 
month in structure fire related subjects as outlined in NFPA 1001.  

   

 C. Classes for  Officers 12.00  12 

 For maximum credit, each officer should be certified in accordance 
with the general criteria of NFPA 1021.  Additionally, each officer 
should receive 12 hours of continuing education on or off site. 
 

   

 D. New Driver and Operator Training 5.00  5 

 For maximum credit, each new driver and operator should receive 60 
hours of driver/operator training per year in accordance with NFPA 
1002 and NFPA 1451.   
 

   

 E. Existing Driver and Operator Training 

For maximum credit, each existing driver and operator should receive 
12 hours of driver/operator training per year in accordance with NFPA 
1002 and NFPA 1451.   
 

5.00  5 

 F. Training on Hazardous Materials  
For maximum credit, each firefighter should receive 6 hours of training 
for incidents involving hazardous materials in accordance with NFPA 
472.  

1.00  1 

 G. Recruit Training 5.00  5 
 For maximum credit, each firefighter should receive 240 hours of 

structure fire related training in accordance with NFPA 1001 within the 
first year of employment or tenure.   

   

     

 H. Pre-Fire Planning Inspections 
For maximum credit, pre-fire planning inspections of each commercial, 
industrial, institutional, and other similar type building (all buildings 
except 1-4 family dwellings) should be made annually by company 
members. Records of inspections should include up-to date notes and 
sketches. 

10.20  12 

 

Item 580 “Credit for Training (CT)” = 8.84 points 



   
 

PPC is a registered trademark of Insurance Services Office, Inc. 
 Page 18  

 

Item 730 – Operational Considerations (2 points) 

Item 730 “Credit for Operational Considerations (COC)” evaluates fire department standard 
operating procedures and incident management systems for emergency operations 
involving structure fires. 
 
 
Operational Considerations  

Earned 
Credit 

Credit 
Available 

Standard Operating Procedures 50  50 

 The department should have established SOPs for 
fire department general emergency operations 

   

Incident Management Systems 50  50 
 The department should use an established incident 

management system (IMS) 
   

 Operational Considerations total: 100  100 
 

Item 730 “Credit for Operational Considerations (COC)” = 2.00 points 

 
 

Water Supply 

Forty percent of a community's overall score is based on the adequacy of the water supply 
system.  The ISO field representative evaluated: 

 the capability of the water distribution system to meet the Needed Fire Flows at 
selected locations up to 3,500 gpm. 

 size, type and installation of fire hydrants. 
 inspection and flow testing of fire hydrants.  

 

 
 

Earned 
Credit 

Credit 
Available 

616. Credit for Supply System  26.99  30 

621. Credit for Hydrants  2.41  3 

631. Credit for Inspection and Flow Testing  5.58  7 

Item 640.  Credit for Water Supply: 34.98  40 

 
 

 



   
 

PPC is a registered trademark of Insurance Services Office, Inc. 
 Page 19  

Item 616 – Credit for Supply System (30 points) 

The first item reviewed is Item 616 “Credit for Supply System (CSS)”.  This item reviews the 
rate of flow that can be credited at each of the Needed Fire Flow test locations considering 
the supply works capacity, the main capacity and the hydrant distribution.  The lowest flow 
rate of these items is credited for each representative location.  A water system capable of 
delivering 250 gpm or more for a period of two hours plus consumption at the maximum daily 
rate at the fire location is considered minimum in the ISO review.  
Where there are 2 or more systems or services distributing water at the same location, credit 
is given on the basis of the joint protection provided by all systems and services available.  
The supply works capacity is calculated for each representative Needed Fire Flow test 
location, considering a variety of water supply sources.  These include public water supplies, 
emergency supplies (usually accessed from neighboring water systems), suction supplies 
(usually evidenced by dry hydrant installations near a river, lake or other body of water), and 
supplies developed by a fire department using large diameter hose or vehicles to shuttle 
water from a source of supply to a fire site.  The result is expressed in gallons per minute 
(gpm). 
The normal ability of the distribution system to deliver Needed Fire Flows at the selected 
building locations is reviewed.  The results of a flow test at a representative test location will 
indicate the ability of the water mains (or fire department in the case of fire department 
supplies) to carry water to that location.  
The hydrant distribution is reviewed within 1,000 feet of representative test locations 
measured as hose can be laid by apparatus.   
For maximum credit, the Needed Fire Flows should be available at each location in the 
district.  Needed Fire Flows of 2,500 gpm or less should be available for 2 hours; and Needed 
Fire Flows of 3,000 and 3,500 gpm should be obtainable for 3 hours.  
Item 616 “Credit for Supply System (CSS)” = 26.99 points 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   
 

PPC is a registered trademark of Insurance Services Office, Inc. 
 Page 20  

Item 621 – Credit for Hydrants (3 points) 

The second item reviewed is Item 621 “Credit for Hydrants (CH)”.  This item reviews the 
number of fire hydrants of each type compared with the total number of hydrants.  
There are a total of 747 hydrants in the graded area. 
 
620. Hydrants, - Size, Type and Installation 

Number of 
Hydrants 

 A. With a 6 -inch or larger branch and a pumper outlet with or without 2½ -
inch outlets 

370  

    
 B. With a 6 -inch or larger branch and no pumper outlet but two or more 

2½ -inch outlets, or with a small foot valve, or with a small barrel 
273  

    
 C./D. With only a 2½ -inch outlet or with less than a 6 -inch branch 104  
    
 E./F. Flush Type, Cistern, or Suction Point 0  
    
 
Item 621 “Credit for Hydrants (CH)” = 2.41 points 

 

Item 630 – Credit for Inspection and Flow Testing (7 points) 

The third item reviewed is Item 630 “Credit for Inspection and Flow Testing (CIT)”.  This item 
reviews the fire hydrant inspection frequency, and the completeness of the inspections.  
Inspection of hydrants should be in accordance with AWWA M-17, Installation, Field Testing 
and Maintenance of Fire Hydrants. 

Frequency of Inspection (FI):  Average interval between the 3 most recent inspections. 
Frequency Points 

1 year 30 
2 years 20 
3 years 10 
4 years 5 
5 years or more No Credit 
Note:  The points for inspection frequency are reduced by 10 points if the inspections are incomplete or 
do not include a flushing program. An additional reduction of 10 points are made if hydrants are not 
subjected to full system pressure during inspections. If the inspection of cisterns or suction points does 
not include actual drafting with a pumper, or back-flushing for dry hydrants, 20 points are deducted. 

 
Total points for Inspections = 3.31 points 
 
 
 



   
 

PPC is a registered trademark of Insurance Services Office, Inc. 
 Page 21  

Frequency of Fire Flow Testing (FF): Average interval between the 3 most recent 
inspections. 

Frequency Points 

5 years 40 
6 years 30 
7 years 20 
8 years 10 
9 years 5 
10 years or more No Credit 

 
Total points for Fire Flow Testing = 2.27 points 
 
Item 631 “Credit for Inspection and Fire Flow Testing (CIT)” = 5.58 points 

 

Divergence = -2.20 

The Divergence factor mathematically reduces the score based upon the relative difference 
between the fire department and water supply scores.  The factor is introduced in the final 
equation. 
 

Community Risk Reduction 

 

 
 

Earned 
Credit 

Credit 
Available 

1025. Credit for Fire Prevention and Code Enforcement 
(CPCE) 

1.78  2.2 

1033. Credit for Public Fire Safety Education (CFSE) 1.21  2.2 

1044. Credit for Fire Investigation Programs (CIP) 0.97  1.1 

Item 1050.  Credit for Community Risk Reduction 3.96  5.50 

 

 
 
 
 
 



   
 

PPC is a registered trademark of Insurance Services Office, Inc. 
 Page 22  

 
Item 1025 – Credit for Fire Prevention Code Adoption and 

Enforcement  (2.2 points) 

Earned 
Credit 

Credit 
Available 

 Fire Prevention Code Regulations (PCR) 10.00  10 

 Evaluation of fire prevention code regulations in effect.    
 Fire Prevention Staffing (PS) 0.43  8 

 Evaluation of staffing for fire prevention activities.    
 Fire Prevention Certification and Training (PCT)  6.00  6 

 Evaluation of the certification and training of fire prevention code 
enforcement personnel. 

   

 Fire Prevention Programs (PCP) 16.00  16 

 Evaluation of fire prevention programs.    
 Review of Fire Prevention Code and Enforcement (CPCE) 

subtotal: 
32.43  40 

 

 
Item 1033 – Credit for Public Fire Safety Education (2.2 points) 

Earned 
Credit 

Credit 
Available 

 Public Fire Safety Educators Qualifications and Training (FSQT) 0.00  10 

 Evaluation of public fire safety education personnel training and 
qualification as specified by the authority having jurisdiction. 
 

   

 Public Fire Safety Education Programs (FSP) 22.00  30 

 Evaluation of programs for public fire safety education.    
 Review of Public Safety Education Programs (CFSE) subtotal: 22.00  40 

 

 
Item 1044 – Credit for Fire Investigation Programs (1.1 points) 

Earned 
Credit 

Credit 
Available 

 Fire Investigation Organization and Staffing (IOS) 8.00  8 

 Evaluation of organization and staffing for fire investigations.    
 Fire Investigator Certification and Training (IQT) 3.60  6 

 Evaluation of fire investigator certification and training.    
 Use of National Fire Incident Reporting System (IRS) 6.00  6 

 Evaluation of the use of the National Fire Incident Reporting 
System (NFIRS) for the 3 years before the evaluation. 

   

 Review of Fire Investigation Programs (CIP) subtotal: 17.60  20 



   
 

PPC is a registered trademark of Insurance Services Office, Inc. 
 Page 23  

Summary of PPC Review 

for 

Scotts Valley FPSA 
 
 

FSRS Item 
Earned 
Credit 

Credit 
Available 

Emergency Communications    
 414. Credit for Emergency Reporting 2.85    3 
 422. Credit for Telecommunicators 3.08    4 
 432. Credit for Dispatch Circuits 3.00    3 
 440. Credit for Emergency Communications 8.93  10 
     
Fire Department    
 513. Credit for Engine Companies 5.93    6 
 523. Credit for Reserve Pumpers 0.50    0.5 
 532. Credit for Pumper Capacity 3.00    3 
 549. Credit for Ladder Service 3.83    4 
 553. Credit for Reserve Ladder and Service Trucks 0.00    0.5 
 561. Credit for Deployment Analysis 2.45  10 
 571. Credit for Company Personnel 11.67  15 
 581. Credit for Training 

730. Credit for Operational Considerations 
8.84 
2.00 

   9 
  2 

 590. Credit for Fire Department 38.22  50 
     
Water Supply    
 616. Credit for Supply System 26.99  30 
 621. Credit for Hydrants 2.41    3 
 631. Credit for Inspection and Flow Testing 5.58    7 

 640. Credit for Water Supply 34.98  40 
     
Divergence 
 
1050. Community Risk Reduction 

-2.20 
 

3.96 

 -- 
 

5.50 
     
 Total Credit 83.89  105.5 

 
 

Final Community Classification = 02/10 
 



SCOTTS VALLEY 
FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
 

7 Erba Lane, Scotts Valley, California 95066 (831) 438-0211 Fax (831) 438-0383 
 

Board of Directors 
             Joe Parker     Russ Patterson     Daron Pisciotta     Kris Hurst    Adam Cosner         
 

 

Date: June 14, 2023 

To: Board of Directors 

From:  Chief Whittle 

Subject:  May Administrative Report 

Administration 

• Attended the AFSS Conference in San Diego from 5/2-5/5/2023 

• Attended CalPERS Webinar to review the annual CERBT reporting requirements 

• Attended CalPERS webinars to review the PEPRA Rate increases for July 1, 2023 and CalPERS Payroll 
Reporting   

• Attended the County FY End Teams Meeting 

• Attended Miss Excel AI Training 

• Admin Specialist Bridges inspected 3 car seats in May 
 

Operations 

May 5th - Blue and Gold dinner / 2022 Firefighter of the year. Congratulations to the Firefighter of the year 
Captain Andy Sundermier. Thank you to the Exchange Club Scotts Valley Chapter for hosting the event.  

Several SVFD members attended the memorial at Twin Lakes Church in Aptos for Santa Cruz City Fire Captain 
Brian Tracy, who Passed away from cancer. His cancer was considered a LODD. This is the third firefighter from 
Santa Cruz to die from a brain tumor / cancer. 

Kevin Laine with help from Chuck Wise, secured 50 free Motorola APX7000xe portable radios from San Jose City 
Fire Surplus. These radios will be a big help with the aging equipment currently in use. Should the radio grant 
fall through they will help bridge the gap until funding is allocated for new equipment. Thank you to San Jose 
City Fire Captain and Boulder Creek Battalion Chief Chuck Wise. 

The SCHMIT trailer was moved to station two so Captain Roshan Todd and the other SCHMIT team members 
assigned there could surplus old out-of-service equipment and prep the trailer for mass decontamination 
response.  

Station repairs: Terre Rothweiler repaired / replaced the fence and railings along the block wall by the BC’s office 
and the apparatus bays at station one. Chris Stubendorff and Jeff McNeil replaced the admin office men’s 
bathroom exhaust fan and made repairs to the sheet rock. Crews Planted a vegetable garden and rebuilt the 
picnic table at station one. 

Crews disassembled the old roof prop at station one to prepare for delivery of the two shipping containers for 
the new training prop in the upper parking lot.  

The SUV U2590 has been permanently moved to the Glenwood station to help aid crews in response to difficult 
access road. Over the winter it had proved to be very useful for crews to have the option to bring the utility with 
them to cross weight restricted bridges, washed out narrow mountain roads and roads that had low hanging 



 

 

Board of Directors 
             Joe Parker     Russ Patterson     Daron Pisciotta     Kris Hurst    Adam Cosner         

2 

wires and partially fallen trees. Thank you to the station two Captains for thinking outside the box and coming 
up with the idea and plan to use the utility. 

May 13th - Crews helped the Rotary Club with the Car Seat Drop Off. The Rotary Club was collecting car seats to 
donate to underserved and underprivileged families. Thank you to Patrizia Materassi Co-President of the Rotary 
Club Scotts Valley Chapter. 

May 30th - SVMS graduation “Spray Down”. Crews used the deck gun fog nozzle to spray the graduating class. 
May 31st - Vine Hill elementary 5th grade “Spray Down”. Crews used the deck gun fog nozzle to spray the 
graduating class. 

 

Training 

EMSIA / EMS coordinator Scott Vahradian assigned Target Solutions based training on EMS Medical Legal 

Review. 

The Fire Academy has concluded and the graduation ceremony was May 10, 2023. SVFD had three cadets 

attend and graduate. All have been promoted to PCF (Paid Call Firefighters) and will be on a 6-month 

probationary period. Please Welcome PCF’s Gabe Kailani, Christian Pacheco and Matt Springer to the ranks. 

Current PCF count is 10. 

Jared Vandiver and Matt Smith attended S-212 wild land fire chain saw class in Carmel / Pebel Beach area. The 

class was hosted and taught by Cal Fire. There were only 4 students in the class so Jared and Matt were able to 

get several reps bucking, brushing and falling trees.  

Crews have begun the 2023 wild land fire refresher training / RT130. Thank you to Sandy Woodruff, owner of 

the Valley Gardens Golf Course for allowing SVFD to train on here property. 

Crews trained at the build site located on 4104 Scotts Valley Drive between Thomas Terrace and Quein Sabe 

Rd. Crews used the construction site to practice fire suppression and rescue techniques on a center hallway 

multi-residency / occupancy structure. Thank you to the owners of the site Chris and Peggy Perry for allowing 

SVFD to train on their property. Thank you to Travis Crivello for coming up with a plan and getting permission 

to use the site. 

Congratulations to Firefighter Patrick Shaughnessy on successfully passing probation. Thank you to the crews 

for helping train and mentor him through the process. Congratulations on a job well done. 

 

EMS 

The current county online narcotic tracking system was upgraded to be application based rather than just on a 

website. So far there has been no issues with the transition.  

There is currently a national shortage of Albuterol. A new medication called Xopenex has been rolled out; 

saving albuterol for pediatric patients 6 and younger. This new medication is very similar to Albuterol with less 

side effects.  

SVFD Paramedics have been on top of all ePCR documentation this year. Every chart has been completed and 

done so in a timely manner.  

 



 

 

Board of Directors 
             Joe Parker     Russ Patterson     Daron Pisciotta     Kris Hurst    Adam Cosner         

3 

Prevention 

DFM Collins completed 21 annual initial inspections, 90 annual re-inspections, 11 construction inspections and 

4 complaint follow ups.  

The following plans were reviewed in house: 3 fire alarm systems, 2 fire sprinkler systems, 1 tenant 

improvement and 1 residential remodel. 

She met on-site with several Redwood Drive residents to assist with their Fire Wise process. She also met with 

the property owners of the Aviza buildings to discuss defensible space.  

The Santa Cruz County Fire Prevention Officers met and will begin working on the Emergency Responder 

Communication Coverage Standard, Fire Watch Standard and Speed Bump Standard.  

DFM Collins completed the first rough draft of the Emergency Responder Communication Coverage Standard. 

The new Santa Cruz County Building Official is Jay Bradford. DFM Collins invited him to attend the July FPO 

meeting.   

 
 
 



Scotts Valley, CA
This report was generated on 6/5/2023 7:58:44 AM

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District 

Breakdown by Major Incident Types for Date Range

MAJOR INCIDENT TYPE # INCIDENTS % of TOTAL
Fires 2 1.14%

Rescue & Emergency Medical Service 121 69.14%

Hazardous Condition (No Fire) 3 1.71%

Service Call 11 6.29%

Good Intent Call 28 16%

False Alarm & False Call 10 5.71%

TOTAL 175 100%

Zone(s): All Zones | Start Date: 05/01/2023 | End Date: 05/31/2023

Doc Id: 553
emergencyreporting.com

Only REVIEWED and/or LOCKED IMPORTED incidents are included.  Summary results for a major incident type are 
not displayed if the count is zero. 

Page # 1 of 2



Detailed Breakdown by Incident Type 

INCIDENT TYPE # INCIDENTS % of TOTAL
131 - Passenger vehicle fire 1 0.57%
151 - Outside rubbish, trash or waste fire 1 0.57%
320 - Emergency medical service, other 2 1.14%
321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury 110 62.86%
322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries 6 3.43%
324 - Motor vehicle accident with no injuries. 3 1.71%
400 - Hazardous condition, other 1 0.57%
412 - Gas leak (natural gas or LPG) 1 0.57%
444 - Power line down 1 0.57%
550 - Public service assistance, other 2 1.14%
553 - Public service 4 2.29%
554 - Assist invalid 4 2.29%
561 - Unauthorized burning 1 0.57%
600 - Good intent call, other 1 0.57%
611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route 17 9.71%
622 - No incident found on arrival at dispatch address 7 4%
631 - Authorized controlled burning 1 0.57%
650 - Steam, other gas mistaken for smoke, other 1 0.57%
651 - Smoke scare, odor of smoke 1 0.57%
700 - False alarm or false call, other 2 1.14%
735 - Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 2 1.14%
740 - Unintentional transmission of alarm, other 2 1.14%
741 - Sprinkler activation, no fire - unintentional 1 0.57%
743 - Smoke detector activation, no fire - unintentional 2 1.14%
746 - Carbon monoxide detector activation, no CO 1 0.57%

TOTAL INCIDENTS: 175 100%

Doc Id: 553
emergencyreporting.com

Only REVIEWED and/or LOCKED IMPORTED incidents are included.  Summary results for a major incident type are 
not displayed if the count is zero. 

Page # 2 of 2



Scotts Valley, CA
This report was generated on 6/5/2023 8:00:37 AM

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District 

Breakdown by Major Incident Types for Date Range

MAJOR INCIDENT TYPE # INCIDENTS % of TOTAL
Fires 4 1.96%

Rescue & Emergency Medical Service 122 59.8%

Hazardous Condition (No Fire) 5 2.45%

Service Call 24 11.76%

Good Intent Call 38 18.63%

False Alarm & False Call 11 5.39%

TOTAL 204 100%

Zone(s): All Zones | Start Date: 05/01/2022 | End Date: 05/31/2022

Doc Id: 553
emergencyreporting.com

Only REVIEWED and/or LOCKED IMPORTED incidents are included.  Summary results for a major incident type are 
not displayed if the count is zero. 

Page # 1 of 2



Detailed Breakdown by Incident Type 

INCIDENT TYPE # INCIDENTS % of TOTAL
111 - Building fire 1 0.49%
118 - Trash or rubbish fire, contained 1 0.49%
131 - Passenger vehicle fire 2 0.98%
320 - Emergency medical service, other 1 0.49%
321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury 108 52.94%
322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries 5 2.45%
323 - Motor vehicle/pedestrian accident (MV Ped) 2 0.98%
324 - Motor vehicle accident with no injuries. 5 2.45%
353 - Removal of victim(s) from stalled elevator 1 0.49%
424 - Carbon monoxide incident 1 0.49%
440 - Electrical  wiring/equipment problem, other 2 0.98%
444 - Power line down 1 0.49%
445 - Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 1 0.49%
500 - Service Call, other 2 0.98%
520 - Water problem, other 1 0.49%
542 - Animal rescue 1 0.49%
550 - Public service assistance, other 5 2.45%
553 - Public service 5 2.45%
554 - Assist invalid 10 4.9%
600 - Good intent call, other 2 0.98%
611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route 25 12.25%
622 - No incident found on arrival at dispatch address 6 2.94%
651 - Smoke scare, odor of smoke 5 2.45%
700 - False alarm or false call, other 2 0.98%
710 - Malicious, mischievous false call, other 1 0.49%
714 - Central station, malicious false alarm 1 0.49%
730 - System malfunction, other 1 0.49%
743 - Smoke detector activation, no fire - unintentional 2 0.98%
744 - Detector activation, no fire - unintentional 3 1.47%
745 - Alarm system activation, no fire - unintentional 1 0.49%

TOTAL INCIDENTS: 204 100%

Doc Id: 553
emergencyreporting.com

Only REVIEWED and/or LOCKED IMPORTED incidents are included.  Summary results for a major incident type are 
not displayed if the count is zero. 

Page # 2 of 2



Scotts Valley, CA
This report was generated on 6/5/2023 8:01:46 AM

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District 

Major Incident Types by Month for Date Range
Start Date: 01/01/2023 | End Date: 05/31/2023

INCIDENT TYPE JAN FEB MAR APR MAY TOTAL
False Alarm & False Call 5 7 12 18 10 52

Fire 2 4 4 4 2 16

Good Intent Call 34 49 40 38 28 189

Hazardous Condition (No Fire) 24 20 33 2 3 82

Rescue & Emergency Medical Service Incident 113 119 111 109 121 573

Service Call 19 17 16 25 11 88

Severe Weather & Natural Disaster 5 1 6

Special Incident Type 1 1 2

Total 202 217 217 197 175 1008

Doc Id: 495
emergencyreporting.com

Only REVIEWED incidents included

Page # 1 of 1



Scotts Valley, CA
This report was generated on 6/5/2023 8:02:38 AM

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District 

Major Incident Types by Month for Date Range
Start Date: 01/01/2022 | End Date: 05/31/2022

INCIDENT TYPE JAN FEB MAR APR MAY TOTAL
False Alarm & False Call 9 9 7 9 11 45

Fire 2 4 6 5 4 21

Good Intent Call 44 32 31 42 38 187

Hazardous Condition (No Fire) 7 7 4 6 5 29

Rescue & Emergency Medical Service Incident 114 86 108 100 122 530

Service Call 16 7 17 12 24 76

Total 192 145 173 174 204 888

Doc Id: 495
emergencyreporting.com

Only REVIEWED incidents included

Page # 1 of 1





Scotts Valley Fire Protection District 
Fire Chief Employment Contract 

 
This contract, dated June 24, 2023 is made between the Scotts Valley Fire Protection District ("DISTRICT") and 

Mark Correira ("EMPLOYEE"). 

RECITALS 

DISTRICT desires to employ the services of EMPLOYEE as Fire Chief and to provide certain compensation and 

establish certain conditions of employment of the Fire Chief. EMPLOYEE desires to accept employment as Fire 

Chief under the conditions contained in this contract. 

In consideration of the mutual covenants contained in this contract, the parties agree as follows: 

1. TERM OF AGREEMENT  

The term of this agreement shall begin on June 24, 2023, and shall continue for a period of five (5) years, subject 

only to the Termination provision of this contract. Both the DISTRICT and EMPLOYEE understand that EMPLOYEE's 

employment is at the will of both parties. Thus, EMPLOYEE serves at the pleasure of the DISTRICT, subject to the 

terms of this contract. In a like manner, nothing in this contact shall interfere with the right of the EMPLOYEE to 

resign at any time, subject to the Termination provision below (Section 5). 

2. DUTIES 

(a) EMPLOYEE shall provide the services normally provided by a Fire Chief in a Fire Protection 

District in California. Such duties include, but are not limited to, planning, directing, and 

supervising the activities of the Fire DISTRICT personnel; coordinating DISTRICT activities and 

mutual aid with Federal, State, and other local agencies; attending before, and after-hours 

meetings as required by the DISTRICT; analyze, prepare and manage the DISTRICT's budget; 

prepare agenda and materials for Board Meetings; select, appoint, promote, and discipline 

employees of the DISTRICT; formulate and recommend policies for Board review and 

adoption; and provide staff assistance to the Board as necessary. EMPLOYEE shall devote such 

time as is reasonably necessary to perform these duties. 

(b) EMPLOYEE is expected to devote his entire productive time, ability, and attention to the 

business of the DISTRICT during the term of this agreement. Without prior consent of the 

Board of Directors, EMPLOYEE shall not render any employment to a business, commercial 

venture, or of professional nature to any other person or organization.  

(c) The DISTRICT encourages the continued professional growth of the Fire Chief. It encourages 

membership and participation in professional organizations, professional seminars, 

professional conferences and conventions, community organizations, in addition to formal 

education. Cost of participation in these organizations and or professional development 

activities will be borne by the District and subject to the approval of the President of the 

Board of Directors. 

(d) EMPLOYEE agrees that in return for the benefits provided herein EMPLOYEE will, within six (6) 

months and continuously thereafter, reside within twenty five (25) minutes (travel time) of 

the boundaries of the DISTRICT as measured by the quickest safe route of travel, using a 

DISTRICT provided vehicle, and following all laws of the road. 

 



Page 2 

3. COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 

(a) Compensation: EMPLOYEE will receive an annual salary as listed in the DISTRICT published 

Salary Schedule. EMPLOYEE will initially be placed at the rate for Fire Chief B ($18,446 

monthly; $221,352 annually). Movement to Fire Chief C is at the discretion of the Board of 

Directors and will be considered as part of the annual evaluation process in Section 4 

Performance Evaluation. EMPLOYEE's salary will be prorated and paid at the same time and in 

the same manner as other DISTRICT employees. 

Pay rate takes effect on the pay period inclusive of the dates listed. 

 7/1/2022 7/1/2023 7/1/2024 

Chief A 20% above BC1* $17,387 $17,908 $18,446 

Chief B 20% above BC2* $17,909 $18,446 $19,000 

Chief C 20% above BC3* $18,447 $19,000 $19,570 

*BC salary is calculated using base pay plus holiday pay 

 

(b) The DISTRICT agrees to compensate EMPLOYEE at straight time at his current hourly rate for 

all time assigned to Federal and/or State emergency incidents. This shall only be paid if the 

DISTRICT receives reimbursement from Federal or State agencies and will not exceed the 

amount actually received as reimbursement. This compensation is for hours worked above 

and beyond the normal work week and in addition to the EMPLOYEE's regular rate of pay. 

(c) Retirement: EMPLOYEE shall be enrolled in the California Public Employees Retirement System 

(CalPERS) as a safety member pursuant to the contractual arrangement between DISTRICT and 

CalPERS.   

(d) Medical Insurance: 

The DISTRICT has elected to contract with the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) to provide 

medical insurance coverage through the Public Employees Medical and Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA) medical plans 

to active employees and retirees. As required by PEMHCA, the DISTRICT shall pay directly to CalPERS the monthly 

Minimum Employer Contribution (MEC) towards the PEMHCA medical plan insurance premium for each active 

employee and retiree who elects to enroll in a PEMHCA medical plan. 

EMPLOYEE may select any Medical Insurance Plan currently offered by DISTRICT for himself and his dependents 

towards which DISTRICT will pay CalPERS an amount of money on behalf of EMPLOYEE and his eligible dependents 

when combined with the MEC, shall be the equivalent to ninety-six percent (96%) of the monthly premium cost of 

the Region 1 PERS Platinum PPO plan as the maximum allowable premium amount. 

(e) Dental Insurance: EMPLOYEE will be enrolled in DISTRICT sponsored dental insurance plan. 

DISTRICT will pay one-hundred percent (100%) of the premium for EMPLOYEE and 

EMPLOYEE's dependents.  

(f) Vision Insurance: EMPLOYEE may enroll in DISTRICT sponsored vision insurance.  If this is 

elected, DISTRICT will pay one-hundred percent (100%) of the premium for EMPLOYEE and 

EMPLOYEE's dependents towards vision insurance premiums.  

(g) Life Insurance: EMPLOYEE will be enrolled in the DISTRICT sponsored group life insurance 

policy ($75,000.00 benefit). DISTRICT will pay one-hundred percent (100%) of the premium for 

this policy.  



Page 3 

(h) Medical Insurance After Retirement:  

i. Upon retirement, the DISTRICT shall continue to fund the MEC established by the 

PEMHCA.  The retiree may participate in the then current DISTRICT-sponsored health care 

plan with the balance of the premium to be funded by the retiree. 

ii. If EMPLOYEE retires from the DISTRICT on or after January 1, 2021 with 10 or more years 

of DISTRICT service and that employee is determined to be an “Annuitant” of the 

DISTRICT as that term is defined by the PEMHCA, the DISTRICT will provide that annuitant 

with a monthly supplemental contribution equal to the premium cost for annuitant only 

coverage, less any MEC paid by the DISTRICT, except that the total of any MEC and 

supplemental contribution provided by the DISTRICT shall not exceed $1,000 a month.  

iii. If EMPLOYEE meets the criteria to be eligible to receive a monthly supplemental 

contribution towards health insurance benefits, then the DISTRICT’s payment of any 

monthly supplemental contribution shall continue until the earlier of: (1) the month that 

includes date the Annuitant becomes eligible to participate in a Medicare plan; (2) the 

Annuitant’s receipt of the equivalent of ten (10) years ’worth of contributions; or (3) the 

Annuitant’s death.  In no event will an Annuitant’s spouse, surviving spouse or surviving 

family member be eligible to receive any supplemental contribution payment. 

iv. If upon service retirement or any time within the eligible reimbursement period, the 

Annuitant elects to cancel participation in a CalPERS health insurance plan, and enroll in 

another health plan, the DISTRICT will continue to reimburse Annuitant 100% of the 

employee-only premium of the new health plan, up the $1,000 per month maximum 

contribution.  The Annuitant must provide the DISTRICT with proof of enrollment and 

premium cost annually, typically after open enrollment and/or prior to the start of the 

new calendar year. 

v. The District agrees to participate in the California Government Voluntary Employee Benefit 

Association (CALGOVEBA) plan, which is intended to assist employees with planning for 

retirement health care expenses. Chief Officer's participation in the VEBA is mandatory 

and irrevocable. 

vi. All payments made to the VEBA on employee's behalf shall be irrevocably paid to the 

California Government Voluntary Employee Benefit Association 501 (c)(9) Trust. BAA 

Capital Advisors Inc. is the Trust Administrator. 

vii. The Chief Officers agree to indemnify and hold the District harmless against any claims, 

lawsuits, demands, penalties, or liability of any kind whatsoever that may arise against the 

District from the employee's participation in the VEBA, including taxes and liabilities 

relating to the VEBA's exempt status as a 501 (c)(9) trust. 

viii. The Chief Officers may form sub-groups based on hire date. These sub-groups can be 

added, deleted, or changed annually by the Chief Officers. Every calendar year, the Chief 

Officers shall submit notification to the District defining sub-groups. Each group will 

establish their respective payroll contributions and percentage of their vacation and sick 

leave balance to VEBA at retirement. 



Page 4 

(i) Vehicle: DISTRICT will provide EMPLOYEE a vehicle for use by EMPLOYEE in the conduct of 

DISTRICT business and de minimis personal use, which includes transportation to and from 

EMPLOYEE's home and work locations. DISTRICT will pay all expenses related to DISTRICT 

business use of the vehicle including fuel, maintenance, insurance, etc. 

(j) Uniform and Equipment: DISTRICT will provide EMPLOYEE with all DISTRICT required uniform 

elements and other equipment. The DISTRICT will also provide for maintenance, replacement 

and/or repair of elements and equipment as needed. All issued uniform elements and 

equipment are and remain the property of the DISTRICT and will be returned to DISTRICT 

upon EMPLOYEE's retirement or separation.  

(k) Cell Phone: The DISTRICT will provide EMPLOYEE with a cellular phone to conduct DISTRICT 

business.  DISTRICT will pay all expenses related to use of the cellular telephone. 

(l) Vacation Leave: EMPLOYEE will accrue vacation credits at the rate of 9.23 hours per two-week 

pay period (six (6) weeks per year). If/ when the amount accrued reaches 400 hours, 

EMPLOYEE will cease accruing these credits unless and until the balance is below 400 hours. 

EMPLOYEE shall notify the President of the Board of Directors and obtain approval prior to 

taking vacation time away from work. Use of Vacation Leave will be based on a 10-hour day/ 

4-day work week.  

(m) Holidays: EMPLOYEE shall be granted the following twelve (12) paid holidays (10-hour day). On 

a paid holiday EMPLOYEE is not expected to work and will not have his compensation reduced 

for the absence on that day(s). Holidays falling on a Saturday will be observed on the 

preceding Friday and holidays falling on a Sunday will be observed on the following Monday. 

New Year's Day (January 1), Martin Luther King Day (third Monday in January), Presidents' Day 

(third Monday in February), Memorial Day (last Monday in May), Independence Day (July 4), 

Labor Day (first Monday in September), Veterans' Day (November 11), Thanksgiving Day 

(fourth Thursday in November), Friday after Thanksgiving, Christmas Eve (December 24), 

Christmas Day (December 25), New Year's Eve (December 31).  

(n) Management Incentive Pay: DISTRICT will pay EMPLOYEE $12,350 ($13,000 effective 7-1-23) 

annually as Management Incentive Pay, in 26 equal payments at the same time as regular 

compensation is paid. This amount will not be considered part of the EMPLOYEE's base pay for 

purposes of calculating hourly rate or other related payroll calculations; however the entire 

amount will be reported to CalPERS as compensation. EMPLOYEE Management Pay is paid in 

accordance with the Chief Officer’s MOU. Section 7.03. 

Pay Period Inclusive Per Payday Monthly Annual 

7/1/22 $475.00 $1,029.17 $12,350 

7/1/23 $500.00 $1,083.33 $13,000 

7/1/24 $525.00 $1,137.50 $13,650 

 
 
 

(o) Education Pay: DISTRICT will provide EMPLOYEE with education pay for a degree from an 

accredited university in a related field.  EMPLOYEE shall receive a monthly amount as follows: 

(the sum will be spread over 26 pay periods and paid out bi-weekly): 



Page 5 

Degree Monthly Amount 

Master’s Degree $300.00 

Bachelor’s Degree $200.00 

Associates Degree $150.00 

 

(p) Management Leave:  EMPLOYEE will be granted forty (40) hours of management leave per 

calendar year.  Requests to use management leave must be approved in advance by the Board 

President.  For the term of this contract, unused management leave shall be cashed out at the 

end of the calendar year at the employee’s base hourly rate. 

(q) Sick Leave: Sick leave is defined as the need to be absent from duty because of injury, illness, 

or exposure to a contagious disease, of EMPLOYEE and/or his immediate family.  

(r) The DISTRICT shall provide 11.08 hours of sick leave for each two-week pay period. Sick leave 

may be accumulated indefinitely. Use of Sick Leave will be based on a 10-hour day/ 4 day work 

week.  

(s) Bereavement Leave: Leave with pay shall be granted to EMPLOYEE in order that they may 

discharge the customary obligations arising from the death of a member of their immediate 

family. Immediate family shall mean an employee’s child, adopted or stepchild, spouse, 

registered domestic partner, father, mother, stepparents, grandparents, grandchildren, 

brother, sister, or any of the above related to the spouse or domestic partner. The Fire Chief 

will be granted 50 hours (5 workdays) of leave which shall be charged against sick leave 

balance. The leave must be used in complete shifts. However, it may be used in non-

consecutive days. Additional leave with or without pay may be granted with the approval of 

the Board President and charged to the employee’s leave banks if available. Use of sick leave 

balance for bereavement shall not count against the 96-hour maximum use provision of 

Section 3(r) “Sick Leave Buy Back”. 

(t) Upon retirement EMPLOYEE may cash out up to 10% of accrued sick leave hours up to a 

maximum of 400 hours.  Payment of sick leave hours will be at the employee’s base hourly 

rate. 

(u) Sick Leave Buyback: Each year, on or after January 1 of the following calendar year of accrual, 

EMPLOYEE shall be paid for 10% of his sick leave hours accumulated during the portion of the 

year he was eligible, subject to the following conditions. 

• EMPLOYEE shall have used no more than ninety-six (96) hours of sick leave during the 

calendar year and shall be in paid status on the last day of the calendar year. 

• The compensation rate used shall be double (two times) the EMPLOYEE’s hourly rate 

received during the year of accrual. 

• All such payments shall be made within thirty-one (31) days of the last day of each 

year. 

• After deductions of hours paid, the remaining sick leave balances shall be accumulated 

to the credit of EMPLOYEE and carried forward into subsequent years.  This balance 

shall be available for the use of employee in the event of injury / illness.  Any balances 

remaining at separation shall be applied to PERS Section 20965 (Unused Sick Leave). 

4. PERFORMANCE   EVALUATIONS 



Page 6 

(a) DISTRICT and EMPLOYEE acknowledge the importance of open and direct communication 

regarding EMPLOYEE's job performance. Annually, the DISTRICT shall review the EMPLOYEE's 

performance to determine, among other things, entitlement of any salary increase (including 

merit and/or cost-of living adjustment) or other amendments to this contract. When the 

Board determines it necessary or appropriate, it may conduct performance evaluation(s) more 

frequently. The evaluation shall be related to the duties and responsibilities of Fire Chief as set 

forth in this agreement and DISTRICT policy. The evaluation shall be in writing and should 

include the following elements:  

• Goals and objectives jointly established by the DISTRICT and EMPLOYEE 

• Employee self-evaluation 

• Relationship with the Board 

• Relationship with the community 

• Overall Fire District leadership 

• Fire District business and operations leadership 

• Personnel leadership 

• Personal qualities and development 

 

The evaluation format shall assess overall performance as well as specific criteria and shall provide for a rating 

system indicating: 

• Outstanding 

• Successfully completed 

• Progressing satisfactorily 

• Making little progress 

• Unsatisfactory 

 

(b) The Board shall meet in closed session to the extent permitted by law to perform this 

evaluation. It may meet without the EMPLOYEE present in order to establish one, single 

evaluation, which shall then be presented to the EMPLOYEE as the evaluation of the DISTRICT.  

(c) This Section does not, and will not, convert EMPLOYEE's status to 'for cause' employment. The 

parties understand and agree that EMPLOYEE's status is at the will of both parties as 

described elsewhere in this Contract (see Sections 1 & 5). 

5. TERMINATION 

This contract may be terminated only as follows: 

(a) During the term of this contract, EMPLOYEE may terminate this contract at any time by giving 

DISTRICT written notice 90 days in advance.  

(b) During the term of this contract, DISTRICT may only terminate this contract by dismissing 

EMPLOYEE for just cause. Such decision must be by a four-fifths (4/5) majority vote of the 

Board of Directors meeting in full session. Just cause is defined as: 



Page 7 

(a) Dishonesty, willful misconduct, or gross neglect by EMPLOYEE in the performance 

of his obligations under this contract; 

(b) Theft, embezzlement, or other similar misappropriation of funds or property of 

DISTRICT by EMPLOYEE; 

(c) Intentional damage to any property of DISTRICT that results in a significant liability 

to DISTRICT;  

(d) The failure of EMPLOYEE to follow reasonable and lawful instructions of the 

DISTRICT Board and/or policies of DISTRICT with respect to EMPLOYEE’s duties 

hereunder;  

(e) Conviction of a felony; 

(f) Loss of mental capacity for a period of six consecutive months;  

(g) Intoxication on duty, whether by alcohol or drugs; 

(h) Inexcusable absences without leave;  

(i) Willful violation of Federal/State law; 

(j) Willful violation of any conflict of interest law; or 

(k) Performance of material outside business activity that conflict with his duties as 

Fire Chief of the DISTRICT. 

(c) EMPLOYEE shall notify DISTRICT in writing within 120 days prior to the normal termination 

date of this contract of his intent regarding renewal or non-renewal of this contract. If 

EMPLOYEE elects to renew this contract, the DISTRICT may determine not to renew this 

contract. In that case, DISTRICT shall notify EMPLOYEE within 90 days prior to the normal 

termination date of this contract of its intent to not renew this contract. If EMPLOYEE notifies 

DISTRICT of his intent to renew this contract and DISTRICT does not notify EMPLOYEE of its 

intent to not renew this contract, then this contract shall continue in full force and effect for a 

period of one (1) year after the termination date herein. 

(d) Upon renewal of the contract by agreement of both parties, the parties agree and understand 

that the terms and conditions of the renewed contract may be renegotiated. 

6. SUSPENSION 

The DISTRICT Fire Board may suspend EMPLOYEE with full pay and benefits at any time during the term of this 

contract.  Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, EMPLOYEE shall reimburse DISTRICT any and all leave 

salary which may be paid to EMPLOYEE pending any investigation of the employment related conduct of 

EMPLOYEE if EMPLOYEE is convicted of a crime involving abuse of his office or position as defined in Government 

Code section 53243.4 [GC 53243]. 

7. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

(a) This written contract shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties. Any prior 

agreements, whether written or verbal, are superseded entirely and replaced exclusively by 

this written agreement. 



Page 8 

(b) This contract shall be binding upon and insure to the benefit of the heirs at law and executors 

of EMPLOYEE. 

(c) If any provisions or any portion thereof contained in this contract is held invalid by a court of 

competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this contract shall be deemed severable and shall 

not be affected and shall remain in full force and effect. 

(d) This contract may be modified or extended upon the written consent of the DISTRICT and 

EMPLOYEE.  Any such modification or extension shall be reduced to writing, signed by both 

parties and be attached to this Contract as an Amendment or Addendum. 

(e) Both parties agree to keep the other party apprised of their current physical address for the 

purposes of any notice required under any provision of this contract. 

(f) Both parties acknowledge that they have reviewed this contract in its entirety and understand 

all the provisions thereof. The parties further acknowledge that they have had the opportunity 

to consult legal counsel regarding this contract and/or any portion of this contract and have 

either consulted legal counsel or waived the right to consult legal counsel. 

(g) The DISTRICT shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless EMPLOYEE for all losses sustained by 

him in the performance of duties in the course and scope of employment under this Contract. 

8. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

(a) In the event a dispute arises over the terms of this Agreement or any actions of the parties 

taken pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, and the dispute remains unresolved for a 

period of 30 calendar days, the parties agree that the sole and exclusive avenue of recourse is 

to submit the dispute to binding arbitration pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure 

Section 1280 et seq. Either the DISTRICT or the EMPLOYEE may request that the dispute be 

submitted to arbitration. This provision shall not apply to disputes between the EMPLOYEE 

and the DISTRICT regarding salary. A dispute shall arise when either party notifies the other in 

writing that a dispute exists.  

(b) The DISTRICT and the EMPLOYEE shall attempt to agree upon an arbitrator. If no agreement 

can be reached, either party may request that the State of California Conciliation and 

Mediation Service provide a panel of five (5) names of experienced arbitrators. Each party 

shall alternatively strike a name until one name remains. The EMPLOYEE shall strike first. The 

remaining panel member shall be the arbitrator. 

(c) The arbitrator's decision shall be in writing, setting forth the findings of fact, reasoning and 

conclusions on the issues submitted. The arbitrator is empowered to include in any award 

only such financial reimbursement or severance pay as may be allowed by this Agreement. 

The decision of the arbitrator will be submitted to the DISTRICT and the EMPLOYEE and will be 

final and binding upon the parties. 

(d) By mutual agreement, the parties may request an expedited arbitration process, according to 

the guidelines and arbitrators provided by the Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Service 

(JAMS), Silicon Valley, CA. 

(e) All cost for the service of the arbitrator will be borne equally by the DISTRICT and the 

EMPLOYEE. Each party shall bear their own attorney's fees and attorney's costs 



Page 9 

In witness whereof, DISTRICT has caused this contract to be signed on its behalf by the DISTRICT Board President, 

and duly attested by the Secretary to the Board, the EMPLOYEE has signed this document on the date listed below, 

which is on or before the date written above. 

 

 

 

For the District: Daron Pisciotta   Employee: Mark Correira 

 

Date Signed:      Date Signed: 

 

 

Attest: Ron Whittle 

 

Date Signed: 

 

 

 


